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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to review
with you the performance and development of the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2013.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group generated revenue
of approximately HK$1,378 million (fifteen months ended 31 March
2012: HK$1,574 million). Net profit attributable to shareholders for
the year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$538 million
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: HK$549 million).

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per share for this financial year. No interim dividend was
declared for the six months ended 30 September 2012.

This year will be seen as a point when the western economies
began to growth. However the global financial market will
continuously face stern challenges and uncertainties. The
worsening Spanish banking crisis threatens to endanger the future
of the Euro-zone which seriously weighed on stock market
performance and the uncertainty economic outlook of the US and
Japan. Despite such climate, the Group endeavors to maintain its
competitive leading position as one-stop financial services to
clients and continue to take a competitive stance at all front in
which we achieved a solid result with total revenue generated from
the financial service business segment for the year ended 31
March 2013 of approximately HK$617 million (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2012: HK$690 million).

During the year, the Group’s Macau hotel and core gaming
business continued to perform strongly contributed by the mass
gaming volumes throughout our property portfolio, coupled with
growth in non-gaming revenue from our hotels. The revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$761 million
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: HK$884 million).

04 Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2013

BRIAR

AANERRENEERMEBERAR(TARAE])
EER(EFRDMARE HT - REBEEARR
(ZEREMBARBA [ AEENDBEE_T—=F
SAZTALEFENEERER -

&éfE—Z¢ZH:+—E¢¢F ZiNCSEE
B #91,378,000,000 8 L (BEZE - ——F =
ﬂ +—H1E+REA : 1,574,000,000% 7T) °
HE-Z—=F=ZA=+—HBLLFEREEGL
F) & 47538,000,000 8 L (BE T ——F = A
=+—HIE+FE{EA : 549,000,000/ 7T) °

EEREHEAAYRFEERMN KR EEZMA1.0/8
ill-BE=E—_FT——FAA=THIERNEALET
& HARLE. ©

REFBWR BT BEREERRIERAOREZ -
AMRRESBMMSDBEEERYRENER LT
B Z » IEEB(EM T FIRITEBEE BT
EAARRBERESE  BREFEREMBHRIENU
FIMAERMBAN T BELERNS - BEM S
At AREEDEO#FERE PR —I
RNEFMBEZHZFED  BEENSAESTE
REGFERMNEETHESREMEERE - &
ECFEZF A=+ HUILTELHREES
S ERFTE A 4B U 2R 4) A 617,000,000 7T (Bl = =
T——F=HA=+—B1E+HEA : 690,000,000
taﬂeﬁ) °

V=

AFEANREBEETYEBRESE LA MER
EEETNBEZIEBRERGEIEMSANESR 2B
BERBEOLBEEBRERRAY HEZZT
—=—F = A=+—HIEFE WL % 761,000,000
Br(EHE—Z——F=ZA=+—HIL+EMAA:
884,000,000 7T) °

79,

0.1 ¢



Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Going forward, despite the economic uncertainties globally, it is
expected that both Europe and the US will continue to implement
monetary easing policies, while the new Japanese economic
policy through ultra loose monetary policy and significant
depreciation of Japanese yen in the short-term, forceful monetary
and fiscal stimulus will support growth across the Asia Pacific
region. And, for the Mainland market, China’s economic growth is
expected to grow as the Central Government will continue to
announce further monetary policies such as the expansion on the
scale of QFIl and RQFII. Hence, under this circumstance in which
we work and invest offers a broad mix of challenges and
opportunities.

Taking full advantage of our experiences, strengths and ample
capabilities developed, the Group is cautiously optimistic on both
of financial business in Hong Kong and the hotel and gaming
business in Macau. | am confident that the Group will keep on
capitalizing on its solid financial position, quality customer
services, superior commission policy, reliable trading platform and
good reputation.

Excellence in the Company’s business performance is driven by
people. | take this opportunity to thank to our board of directors,
dedicated team of the Group professionals who drive our success
by their ingenuity and high standard contribution in the past years.
| also express my sincere appreciation to all our valued service
and business partners as well as you the shareholder for the
encouraging support.

| thank you again for the confidence that you have placed to us.

By Order of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R AT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
announce the result of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE IN
PRIOR YEAR

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 April 2011,
the Company has changed its financial year end from 31
December to 31 March. Accordingly, these audited financial
statements cover the year ended 31 March 2013 while the
comparative figures cover a fifteen-month period from 1 January
2011 to 31 March 2012.

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of a wide range
of financial services which include securities underwriting and
placements, margin and initial public offering financing, securities
brokerage, corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage
and asset management services. The Group also provides
entertainment and hospitality services in Macau.

The Group’s turnover was approximately HK$1,377,988,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2013, representing a decrease of 12.5% as
compared with approximately HK$1,573,971,000 for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012.

The net profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders year
ended 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$537,884,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012:
HK$548,988,000). The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2013 was HK3.10 cents (fifteen months ended 31 March
2012: HKS.69 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R T

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Securities Brokerage, Underwriting and
Placements

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the debt crisis in Europe and
slowdown in the global economy continued to affect the Hong
Kong financial market although there were signs of recovering and
the turnover of the stock market has been improving since the
fourth quarter of 2012. As a result, the average daily turnover of the
stock market in Hong Kong for the year under review was
approximately HK$56.5 billion, representing a decrease of 15% as
compared with HK$66.5 billion for the same period last year.

In addition, the total funds raised of new listings in Hong Kong
during the year under review decreased significantly by 65% to
HK$88.4 billion as compared with HK$251.8 billion for the same
period last year. The Group mainly offers trading services in Hong
Kong and does not have any representative office in overseas
jurisdictions. However, to accommodate the investment need of its
clients, the Group arranges dealing and brokerage services in
overseas markets including Singapore, Australia, Taiwan, Japan,
Korea, Canada, the United States of America and the United
Kingdom through brokers which are licensed in the respective
jurisdictions. Customers may place orders by telephone as well as
via the internet system. The securities brokerage business
generates revenue by charging commissions for transactions
executed through the trading platform provided by the Group.

Securities underwriting and placement services is one of the main
revenue streams of the Group. The Group undertakes the
origination, structuring and marketing of placements of equity and
equity-related securities. It also provides comprehensive solutions
to clients’ financing needs. The Group has successfully undertaken
the roles of placing agents and underwriters for listed companies
in a wide range of industries.

During the year, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$150,578,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012:
HK$179,787,000) which accounted for 24% (fifteen months ended
31 March 2012: 26%) of the Group’s financial service segment
revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B wm M AT

Margin and IPO Financing

Margin and IPO financing services are provided by the Group to
complement its securities brokerage business. Margin financing is
made available to clients who have opened margin accounts with
the Group to purchase securities with funds borrowed from it to
leverage their investments. IPO financing is the grant of loans to
clients for subscriptions of shares relating to an IPO.

During the year, revenue generated from the margin and IPO
financing segment amounted to approximately HK$453,410,000
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: HK$489,762,000),
accounted for 74% (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: 71%) of
the Group’s financial service segment revenue.

Corporate Finance Advisory services, Futures
Brokerage and Asset Management

Complementing the securities brokerage, underwriting and
placements, and margin and IPO financing, the Group also
provides a full range of financing services to its clients including
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

The Group holds licence under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to engage in advising on corporate finance activities.
The scope of services provided includes advising on corporate
finance transactions, sponsoring IPOs and advising clients on
financing strategies in the context of mergers and acquisitions,
equity fund raising exercises, takeovers and other notifiable
transactions.

The Group provides brokerage services for index futures trading
on the Futures Exchange. Clients can place orders on the internet
in addition to telephone. In addition, After Hours Futures Trading
has been launched on 8 April 2013.

The Group also provides portfolio management services. The asset
management business generates revenue by charging
management fees and incentive fees based on the amount of
assets under management, and returns of portfolios, respectively.

During the year, this segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$12,980,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012:
HK$20,498,000) which accounted for 2% (fifteen months ended 31
March 2012: 3%) of the Group’s financial service segment
revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R T

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

Goodwill was arised upon the Group’s acquisition of financial
services business completed in April 2011. An independent
professional valuer was engaged to perform impairment
assessment on the goodwill. It was found that the recoverable
amount of all 3 cash generating units, namely the Placing and
Underwriting segment, the Margin and IPO Financing segment and
the Corporate Finance segment, exceed their respective carrying
amount. Under these circumstances, no impairment on the
goodwill is considered necessary.

Hotel Business

The Group’s hotel operation, mainly comprised of guest rooms,
food and beverage sale and other rental income, continued to
provide solid return to the Group. The revenue for the year ended
31 March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$218,220,000
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: HK$258,121,000). Hotel
business contributed 29% (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012:
29%) of the total hotel and gaming business turnover. During the
year under review, the average occupancy rate of the two hotels
was approximately 79%. The potential of newly renovated guest
rooms were nearly fully realised and reflected in the current year’s
room rates and occupancy rates.

Gaming Business

The Group’s casino operation is run by the licence holder
Soceidade de Jogos de Macau, S.A.. The two casinos consistently
provided solid contributions to the Group in line with the rapid
development of the gaming industry in Macau. To retain quality
customers and attract potential ones, the Group strengthened its
membership programmes and provided a variety of incentives for
members to increase their spending in the casinos as well.

Casino revenue, including gaming revenue and food and beverage
sale in casino, amounted to approximately HK$542,800,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2013 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012:
HK$625,803,000). Casino revenue accounted for 71% (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: 71%) of total hotel and gaming
business turnover.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has 61 tables in the 2 mass
market halls, 11 tables in the 2 self-managed VIP rooms and 255
slot machines and 140 live baccarat machines in the 2 electronic
gaming halls. The live baccarat machines at Casa Real newly
opened in October 2012 brought additional crowd to the property,
achieving synergy with the slot machines business as well.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B wm M AT

Trading of listed securities

Approaching end of year 2012, the global equity market
experienced strong rebound and the market value of the trading
securities held by the Group during the year under review
recorded a slight revaluation deficit approximately HK$759,000
(fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: deficit of HK$15,817,000).
As at 31 March 2013, the Group was holding trading securities of
approximately HK$50,121,000 in market value (As at 31 March
2012: HK$51,365,000).

Inventory consumed

Inventory consumed represents the cost of guest supplies and
food and beverage consumed upon provision of accommodation
and catering services to the customers. During the year under
review, it amounted to approximately HK$22,697,000 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: HK$26,307,000).

Staff costs

Staff costs amounted to approximately HK$169,226,000 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: HK$165,109,000), the increase was
mainly due to additional staff employed. Remuneration packages
commensurate with employees’ qualification and experience were
provided to retain good employees in the Group as well as to hire
potential talents.

Gaming commission

Gaming commission represents amount paid as an incentive for
attract customers. The commission paid by the Group was in line
with market level. During the year under review, it amounted to
approximately HK$170,827,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2012: HK$233,623,000).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consist of rent and rates, legal and
professional fees, advertising and promotion expenses and Macau
property tax. During the year under review, it amounted to
approximately HK$122,688,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2012: HK$131,832,000).

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly consist of operating expenses
for guest rooms and gaming facilities. During the year under
review, it amounted to approximately HK$64,334,000 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: HK$61,681,000). The increase was
mainly due to certain staff associated welfare improvement during
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R T

Finance cost

During the year under review, finance cost represents the effective
interest expense on promissory notes. It amounted to
approximately HK$56,552,000 (fifteen months ended 31 March
2012: HK$54,290,000).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the expectations of the sustained exceptionally
low interest rate environment in the Euro-Zone and the U.S., as well
as the implementation of the loose monetary policies, will
constantly enhance global capital mobility. In Asia, the Japanese
yen weakened as the Bank of Japan expanded the quantitative
easing strategy to improve the economic contraction. Meanwhile,
the central banks of Australia, Korea and Vietnam, etc, all cut their
key interest rates to boost economic growth, further strengthening
the liquidity in the Asia-Pacific region.

However, the global economic outlook remained uncertain as the
Euro-Zone was still subject to downside risks, and the U.S. is
struggling with large debt burdens caused by the excessive fiscal
consolidation. Generally speaking, the tensions in financial markets
may gradually subside, leading to the recovery in the global
market. Moreover, with the recent decline in the sovereign bond
yield of the Euro periphery countries, global investors may continue
their pursuit of risky assets, especially equities, posting high fund
inflows to the emerging markets.

China’s economy restored growth in Q4 2012, reporting a year-on-
year GDP growth of 7.8% for the whole year, moving towards a soft
landing. New China leaders’ acceleration in urbanization would
support the sustainable economic growth in the country. At the
same time, the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC)
further raised the quotas for QFIl and RQFII, and attempted pilot
programs in Taiwan, enabling greater investment flexibility. Also,
CSRC still encourages the development of cross-border financial
services, as well as the overseas listing of domestic firms. In the
hope of having QDII2 to be launched this year, more opportunities
may arise in the Hong Kong equity market.

Financial services segments

Facing with uncertainty and ever-growing market competition, the
Group endeavours to maintain its competitive leading position as a
one-stop financial services to its clients.
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The Group has achieved an impressive performance for its
securities underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing
and securities brokerage businesses during the year under review.
Leveraging the long-established reputation and a strong client
base, the Group will further reinforce the foundation in these key
revenue generating businesses by recruiting qualified
professionals, improving the trading infrastructure and delivering
more value-added services to its clients.

The Group will continue to leverage its strong equity capital
markets (“ECM”) client base to capture the market share in
corporate finance advisory business. The Group will also
continually pursue opportunities to gain exposure to various types
of corporate transactions and actively explore potential business
with the existing ECM clients. It will deploy more resources and
experienced personnel to cope with the potential growth of its
corporate finance advisory business.

Hotel and gaming segments

The Group continuously pursues various marketing and promotion
activities through the comprehensive membership programmes.
Our guests enjoy impressive services within the Group’s properties
with the use of our casino package. In view of the consistent
growth in membership base of the programmes, the Group will
further enhance the programmes to attract new customers.

The newly renovated guest rooms have proved to be in popular
demand and the Group will continue to invest in this area to pave
the way for revenue enhancement. The Group will also further
strengthen its relationship with travel agencies and offer packages
and joint promotions with business partners so as to broaden the
scope of customers of the two hotels.

Active floor management will continuously be in place in the
electronic gaming halls of the Group’s casinos, bringing extra
revenue to the gaming segment.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 March 2013 the shareholders’ fund and net current assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$14,813,577,000 (31
March 2012: HK$14,132,065,000) and approximately
HK$1,128,243,000 (31 March 2012: HK$1,626,972,000)
respectively. On the same date, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$188,102,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$145,172,000) and the current ratio was 1.2 (31 March 2012:
1.4).
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As at 31 March 2013, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$150,000,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$981,000,000), amounts due to shareholders of approximately
HK$1,661,111,000 (31 March 2012: HK$1,924,411,000), loan from
a related company of approximately HK$2,289,821,000 (31 March
2012: HK$16,017,000), promissory notes of approximately
HK$961,200,000 (31 March 2012: HK$924,648,000) and
subordinated loans of approximately HK$700,000,000 (31 March
2012: HK$700,000,000). On the same date, the net gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings less bank and cash
balances over net assets, was 38% (31 March 2012: 31%).

The following table details the Cash and bank balances — general
account and bank loans of the Group at the end of the reporting
year/period denominated in original currencies:

R=ZZE—ZFZA=+—8 A5£BZRTEE
#97150,000,0008 L (ZFE——F=A=+—8 :
981,000,000/ 7C) * & 1 B B R\ X A
1,661,111,0008 (= E——F=ZA=+—8:
1,924,411,000/870) « KRB —RBER R ZERK
#49/52,289,821,0008 (= E—=—F=A=+—

BL(ZE——F=A=+—H : 924,648,000/8
JT) R 1B EE % # A700,000,0008 T (—E——
#F#=HA=+—H :700,000,000&7T) - RE %
BEAGBEERAI%(ZE——F=A=+—01:
31%)  ZERUBEERBITMNRSESBREE
SFEFTHE -

TREIINREF HRUARBEERTEZ RS
BR & RIRTTAR — —RIRP MRTTER

2013
—E-=F
HKD CNY usb JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
BT AR EPH AE g EE O OBHMNT  BAR
(°000) (°000) (°000) (°000) (°000) (’000) (°000) (°000)
(Fm) (F) (Fx) (F7r) () (Fx) (F7) (Fr)
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTES
— general account — —RERP 159,030 4,425 358 100 46 8 6 19,740
Bank loans BITER 150,000 - - - - - - -
2012
5
HKD CNY uUshD JPY SGD GBP AUD MOP
BT ARE ey HE #inErx HE BMT  BMr
(000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (000)  (‘000)
(F) (F7) (F7) (F7) (F7) (F) (F7) (F7)
Cash and bank balances & MiR1T4
— general account — —fREEP 123,920 6,492 4,551 100 373 8 2 6,917
Bank loans RITER 981,000 - - - - - - -

Committed borrowing facilities amounted to HK$120,000,000.
Details of the bank loans of the Group is set out in note 34 to the

financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

No material contingent liabilities of the Group were noted as at 31

March 2013.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain consultants
exercised their options to subscribe for 71,236,000 new shares of
HK$0.02 each of the Company. The proceeds from the exercise of
options amounted to approximately HK$22,227,000.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per Share for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“Final
Dividend”), amounting to approximately HK$173,645,000. The
proposed Final Dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM and a resolution will be proposed to the
Shareholders for voting at the AGM. If the resolution for the
proposed Final Dividend is passed at the AGM, the proposed Final
Dividend will be payable on or about 10 September 2013 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 28 August 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at AGM
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on
16 August 2013 (Friday)
19 August 2013 (Monday)
to 20 August 2013 (Tuesday)

Book close date

Record date 20 August 2013 (Tuesday)

AGM 20 August 2013 (Tuesday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed Final Dividend
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on

26 August 2013 (Monday)
27 August 2013 (Tuesday) to
28 August 2013 (Wednesday)

Book close date

Record date 28 August 2013 (Wednesday)

Final Dividend payment date 10 September 2013 (Tuesday)
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In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the AGM and
for the proposed Final Dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Abacus Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong before the above latest time to lodge
transfers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were approximately 42% of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer were
approximately 38% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases and service received during the year
ended 31 March 2013 attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and
service received.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2013 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company, which to
the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, have an interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed a total of approximately
880 staff. The total staff cost for the year ended 31 March 2013
was approximately HK$169,226,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$165,109,000). The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary adjustment are assessed based on their work performance,
working and professional experiences and the prevailing market
condition.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had pledged clients’ securities at
a value of approximately HK$24,582,215,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$18,550,902,000) to secure certain banking facilities provided
to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year under review, no material acquisition or disposal
was conducted by the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

The Group’s Risk Management Committee has put in place credit
management policies and procedures which cover the examination
of the approval of clients’ trading and credit limits, approval and
review of the margin lending ratio of individual stock, monitoring of
credit exposures and the follow up of credit risks associated with
overdue debts. Day-to-day credit monitoring is performed by the
Group’s Credit and Risk Control Department in accordance with
the policies and procedures approved by the Risk Management
Committee with toleration and exception reports reviewed by
Responsible Officers and senior management of the Group as well
as by the Risk Management Committee at regular meetings.

Market risk

If the market value of a margin client’s portfolio falls below his
margin loan amount and the margin client fails to meet margin
calls, the Group will be exposed to the risk that the margin loan
being delinquent. Similarly, if the value of the underlying products
of a client’s futures contract fluctuates such that the outstanding
balances in his account falls below the required maintenance
margin level, the Group may suffer loss if the client’s account
incurs loss even after liquidation of the open position. The
management of the Group keeps close monitoring of the market
condition so that immediate precautionary measures will be taken
to reduce such risk that the Group may encounter. Follow up
actions such as reducing the margin ratio for the pledged
securities and requiring clients to top up their position would be
taken if considered appropriate.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk arising from timing difference between settlement with
clearing houses or brokers and clients. The goal of liquidity
management is to enable the Group to adequately fund such
business commitments as well as to comply with relevant financial
resources rules applying to various licensed subsidiaries. To
address the risk, the Group’s Accounts Department and the senior
management will review and monitor the Group’s liquidity position
on daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has also put in place stand-by banking and
other facilities in order to meet any contingency in its operations.
The management believes the Group’s working capital is adequate
to meet its financial obligations.

Interest rate risk

The Group charged interest on its margin clients on the basis of its
cost of fund plus mark-up. Financial assets such as margin loans
and deposit with banks are primarily at floating rates. Financial
liabilities such as bank loans are primarily at floating rates. The
Group income and operating cash flows are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s hotel revenues are mostly denominated in Macau
Patacas (“MOP”), and given the exchange rate of MOP has been
fairly stable, its exposure to exchange rate risk is considered to be
limited.

The Group’s financial service businesses and gaming revenue are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and hence no
significant exchange rate risk is identified.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
loan receivable that are denominated in a currency other than its
functional currency. The currency giving rise to this risk to the
Group is primarily Canadian dollars. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group may invest its surplus funds or funds not designated for
specific purpose or funds designated for specific purpose but
application of which is not immediately required (collectively “the
Group’s Funds”) in the form of short term (i.e. less than one year)
and liquid stocks through investing the Group’s Funds in diversified
portfolio of investments products including listed or unlisted
securities, unit trust funds, or such other investments as the board
of the Company, or such committees or person as the board may
authorize, may decide from time to time so as to preserve the value
of the Group’s Funds and/or achieve capital appreciation.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
meets the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss any
areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) and the legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting in the review of the Company interim and annual
reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group had complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March
2013, except that the independent non-executive directors are not
appointed for specific terms but are still subject to re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. On 1 April 2013, each
of them has been appointed for an initial term of one year.

By Order of the Board
Chu Yuet Wah
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Good corporate governance has always been recognised as vital
to the Group’s success and to sustain development of the Group.
We commit ourselves to a high standard of corporate governance
as an essential component of quality and have introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the business of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the principles of good
corporate governance (the “Principles”) and two levels of corporate
governance practices:

(a) code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) which listed issuers
are expected to comply with or to give considered reasons
for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices (the “Recommended Best
Practices”) for guidance only, which listed issuers are
encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions except the appointment of independent non-executive
directors for specific terms but has been rectified in 1 April 2013. It
also put in place certain Recommended Best Practices as set out
in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
the abovementioned officers.
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The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of the
Company and independence in decision making. The Board
currently comprises 5 members, consisting of 2 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (Chairman)
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Lau Man Tak (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors also represented at least one third of the members of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
Independent Non-executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

The term of office for each of Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors is the period up to his retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the following
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

Training for Directors

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be
provided an induction so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary. During the year, the Company has organized one
training session to all Directors conducted by qualified
professionals on “Continuing Obligations — Disclosure of Inside
Information” in March 2013. Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, Mrs. Chu
Yuet Wah, Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr. Lau Man Tak and Mr. Yu Peter
Pak Yan attended that session. All Directors have provided records
of the training they received to the Company.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for determining the policy for corporate
governance and performed the duties under the terms of reference
in code provision D.3.1 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 4 Board meetings and 1
general meeting were held. The individual attendance record of
each Director at the Board meeting and general meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

Name of Directors

EEZRER

ERREBHERY
SEEREBFRIBTHRERER  SRAME
FEIT M ﬁET&Ttt/EEMW&%&%%EEL‘/\&%E
REEARBIBRBRBLEE -FRNEERTE
A HIFT R EABUR MR £ R AP 8% 14 57 R
XDINREZBRETREZRE -

BE_ZT—=F=ZA=1t—"BLLFE AQAE
RITOREEREEN—RBERAG -BE_ZT
—ZHFZA=t-HULEE REEREERE®
& LR R E Z EA M F R T

Attendance Attendance
at Board at general
meetings meeting
R R

EZREE BREAXERE

EEHR

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui RARBEAE
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FHELL
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =EREELT
Mr. Lau Man Tak E e P
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACEE

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meetings.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contains provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Chu,
Nicholas Yuk-yui and Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah respectively.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. She is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the company practices and procedures, business
objectives, and risk assessment for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference.
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All the members of the three Board committees are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant, compliance officer or external auditors before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2013 to review the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board

regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors.
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The Company’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2013
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the Audit
Committee meeting during the year ended 31 March 2013 is set
out below:

ARARHEZZ
HARB R ERE

o= T HEgy e T 7 R

Ee®EN -

HE-T-=F=A=+—ALFH SHEER
EREERRHLEARRTERIINT ;

Attendance

at Audit

Committee

Name of Audit Committee Members meetings
i

BEREES

EREEENENE BB
Mr. Lau Man Tak Bz fEkAE 2/2
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =R 2/2
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACEE 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee has
assessed the performance of executive directors and reviewed the
terms of service contract of directors.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2013 and reviewed the existing remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management. The attendance record is
as follows:

FNEZEeRBE_T—=F=—A=1+—HLHF
Faaﬁﬁ—u\ I 4 5 AR A B3R B H B R S 2R
BUREENSREBABZHMEeES - HES
AERCERELSIANT

Attendance at
Remuneration

Committee

Name of Remuneration Committee Members meetings
HE

TMEES

FMEESERENE BRAE
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIALCEAE 1/1
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =S 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Tak B EEAE 1/1
The remuneration of the members of senior management by band HZE-—E—=&=F=+—H | FF ' LA

for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out as below:

AEID 2 EHBEEEKRBFMEIINT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) person
FEiAa R (BT) A"
Nil to 1,000,000 Z£ £ 1,000,000 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 & 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,001 2 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,001 £ 4,000,000 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy for the consideration of the Board and to
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy. During the
nomination process, the nomination committee will consider the
competency, independency (in case of independent non-executive
director), conflict of interests, capacity, management experience of
a candidate which makes him/herself suitable for the role as a
director and make recommendation to the Board for consideration.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the

appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s structure, size
and composition regularly to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the Board exist,
the Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2013. The attendance record is as follows:

REZEQCEHIRNESTRER - RRKAERK -
NHEREAAESARAEBRTEZERMH
RERER HWEZRHRE=R  REZESH
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BRELBO - AETEERF - HAKLE - A
BRINURRAIRETTHRE RBERRF

T-—=—F=-ZA=+—HILtFE ELEE
—R > BEERZESEHINT

Attendance at

Nomination

Committee

Name of Nomination Committee Members meetings
H

REERS®

REZSENEHE =R P8
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen =EEELT 1/1
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan RIACEE 1/1
Mr. Lau Man Tak BBk s 1/1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by the employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
20183.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 43 to 44.

The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to HK$1,973,000 and
HK$70,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company is set out below:

FRMBRR2EEREBEME

EERAEHFERTHRE  ABEE MR
HRE EmRRA N EMEERE 2 HMRER
E RSl - BW R SR E

EEAARSFEAREAARIEECZS
ZA=ZT-AULEFEZHB®REK -

— =%

ARRINEZBME P B HRRAREET2BHA -
HNFEIBE44 B2 BB RS

REBE-_Z—=F=A=+—RHI1LFE D3l
BN IEEZRGEN S TEAM T AR R 2 INERZ
EEMEN £ 2 BllA& 1,973,000 7T & 70,000 7 7T ©

B/ ENARRSNEZEEME 2 2T

Amount of

Fees Payable/

Types of Services Paid

BB

PR E R BRTHE

(HK$)

(B)

Audit Services ENZARTE 1,973,000
Non-audit Services IEEZRTF

1. Tax services 1. FIBRRTS 70,000

2. Others 2. Efb -

70,000

Total At 2,043,000
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with
defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Management currently takes the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal
audit function will be reviewed from time to time.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and an independent accounting firm, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is satisfied that the internal control system within the
Group are effective.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings,
any Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
of the company secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such requisition the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Bermuda
Companies Act.

Proceedings at general meetings

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders meetings are contained in the
Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee or in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to
answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company

The amendments to the Listing Rules as well as the Corporate
Governance Code came into effective on 1 January 2012 and 1
April 2012. The Directors made certain amendments to the
memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company (the
“Constitutional Documents”) and adopted the amended and
restated Constitutional Documents by way of special resolutions
which were approved by the Shareholders on 17 August 2012 so
as to bring the Constitutional Documents in line with current
amendments made to the Listing Rules and relevant laws and
enhance the flexibility to manage the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.kingston.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are posted.
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 46. The Board recommended the payment of final dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: HK1.0 cent). No interim dividend
was declared during the six months ended 30 September 2012 (six
months ended 30 June 2011: HKO.5 cent per share).

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2013 is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 50 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
March 2013 are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$1,578,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EERWmE

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as

EEHBEHRE
AEEBERAMRELE 2 LEUREERE B
BE DESECERRERE  YOEEEE
FHE BIIWT

below:
2013 2012 2010 2009 2008
—E-=f —FT—=-f ZZ2-TF ZITTNFE ZZIENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAT FAL FHEL
(restated) (restated)
(&Z51) (&851)
Turnover LER 1,377,988 1,573,971 541,247 413,739 421,748
Profit/(loss) before taxation BERTER, (E5B) 614,242 639,903 100,904 231,687 (179,910)
Profit/(loss) attributable to B AEIESF
owners (E18) 537,884 548,988 99,558 229,915 (180,816)
Total assets BEBE 21,651,262 19,518,211 3,875,279 3,252,731 2,859,876
Total liabilities BEEE (6,824,247)  (5,374,857) (55,526) (44,815) (34,915)
Non-controlling interest Pl e Eind (13,438) (11,289) (3,886) (2,540) (2,568)
Shareholders’ fund BREES 14,813,577 14,132,065 3,815,867 3,205,376 2,822,393
Notes: Bz -

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company first adopted
amendments to HKAS 17 made under “Improvements to HKFRSs
2009". The comparative figures for all the years 2008 and 2009 were
restated to conform with current year presentation.

(2) 2012 and 2013 figures represent period for fifteen months ended 31

March 2012 and year ended 31 March 2013, respectively.

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share options and share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in notes 37 and 39 to the

financial statements respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the share option schemes are set out in note 37 to the

financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EE WG

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on prorate basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2013 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen

Mr. Lau Man Tak

Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan

In accordance with the bye-law 87(1), Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and Mr.
Lau Man Tak will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The term of office for each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, Mr.
Lau Man Tak and Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company still considers the independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui, aged 60, holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Accounting and a Master of Business Administration from the
Louisiana State University. He has extensive experience in
commercial property leasing and management, and in corporate
finance, foreign exchange, lending, securities and futures trading
industries. He is a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute and a
responsible officer under the Securities and Futures Ordinance for
type 1 (dealing in securities) and 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
activities. He is also the spouse of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah and he
joined the Group in February 2006.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, aged 54, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. She is the co-founder of
Kingston group of companies and is very experienced in the
financial services industry. She has also been involved in gaming
entertainment related services and has profound knowledge in the
development of the gaming entertainment industry in Macau. She
is the Member of National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(Provincial) Member Association Foundation, Vice Chairman of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, Chairman of The
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, Chairman of Hong Kong
Securities Professionals Association, Director of China Red Cross
Jet Li One Foundation, Vice Chairman of Po Leung Kuk, Chairman
of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Chairman of Aplichau Promotion of Tourism
Association, School Manager of Aplichau KaiFong Primary School,
Chairman of The Aplichau KaiFong Welfare Association, Honorary
President of Hong Kong Federation of Women, Vice President of
The Tung Koon District General Association, President of the
Women’s Community of Tung Koon General Association and
Honorary Vice President of Hong Kong Girl Guides Association.
She received an Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy in Business
Management degree from York University, the U.S.A. and holds a
Bachelor of Science in Management degree from Golden Gate
University, the U.S.A.. Mrs. Chu is currently the chairman and
executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited which is
a company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange. She is
also the spouse of Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui and she joined the
Group in April 2005.
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Report of the Directors
EE WG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, aged 55, received a Ph.D. Degree from
Harvard University, and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked
in financial industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in Corporate Finance,
Investment and Derivative Products. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities Institute. Dr. Wong is an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited, and an independent non-executive director of
Bauhaus International (Holdings) Limited, China Sandi Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China Grand Forestry Green Resources
Group Limited), Climax International Company Limited, Harmony
Asset Limited, Hua Yi Copper Holdings Limited, Kaisun Energy
Group Limited, Kong Sun Holdings Limited, China Yunnan Tin
Minerals Group Company Limited, New Island Printing Holdings
Limited and Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited. Dr. Wong was
also independent non-executive director of China E-Learning
Group Limited from August 2007 to June 2010, and Superb
Summit International Timber Company Limited from April 2007 to
June 2010, Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (formerly known as ZMay Holdings Limited) from
November 2009 to September 2012, and the chairman and
executive director of Green Energy Group Limited from December
2009 to May 2010. He joined the Group in June 2005.

Mr. Lau Man Tak, aged 43, holds a bachelor degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate finance, accounting
and auditing. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute and
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is
currently an executive director, the chairman, compliance officer
and substantial shareholder of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited, which is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited, Climax
International Company Limited, Kong Sun Holdings Limited and
AMCO United Holdings Limited, which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also an executive
director of China Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited
(presently known as China Sandi Holdings Limited) from April 2010
to September 2012, which is a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in October 2005.
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Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan, aged 62, has extensive experience in real
estate and financial services industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor
Degree in Management from Youngstown State University in Ohio,
USA and a Master of Science Degree in Financial Services from
American College in Pennsyvania, USA. Mr. Yu is a member of the
Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was the
first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San Francisco
Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union Real Estate
Company in the United States from 1980-1995 and held senior
positions in MetLife and New York Life Insurance Company in
managing Asian customers in North America. Mr. Yu is also an
executive director of Kong Sun Holdings Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of M Dream Inworld Limited,
Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Sam Woo Holdings Limited) and China Sandi Holdings Limited. He
joined the Group in September 2008.

Senior Management

Mr. Lui Jammy, aged 44, is the Chief Operating Officer —
Financial Services, of the Group. Mr. Lui is responsible for
overseeing the operations of the Group. Mr. Lui has over 13 years
of experience in securities and capital markets, and has extensive
experience in auditing, financing, accounting and operations. He
is a director of The Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and The
Hong Kong Association of Online Brokers Limited. Mr. Lui
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy. He also holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Manchester and a Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws from University of
London. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Associate of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is registered as a
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities. Mr. Lui joined
the Group in December 2010.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung, aged 42, is the Financial Controller of the
Group and Secretary of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor of
Arts Degree in accountancy in Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Lai is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrations and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai
had worked for an international accounting firm and a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong and the United States as senior
management and has years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in August
2008.
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Ms. Chan Yin Tong Cynthia, aged 62, is a director of Kingston
Securities Limited. Ms. Chan is responsible for promotion, sales
and marketing, recruitment and training of sales representative of
Kingston Securities. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
securities broking, compliance, administrative functions, activities
in underwriting new issues, equity capital markets and project
financing. Prior to joining the Group, she was the Dealing Director
and Responsible Officer of Wintech Securities Limited and Koffman
Securities Limited principally responsible for securities broking,
compliance and administrative functions. In addition, Ms. Chan
also undertook activities in underwriting new issues, equity capital
markets and project financing. Ms. Chan has been working in
international securities firms and investment banks in the 1980’s.
Ms. Chan worked in Merrill Lynch (FE) Limited in 1989 and
Standard Chartered Securities Limited in 1993 and was also the
Assistant Vice President of Prudential Bache Securities Hong Kong
Limited in 1997. She is very experienced with the operations of the
Hong Kong securities market. Ms. Chan is a registered
Responsible Officer under Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Ms. Chan joined the Group in February 2006.

Mr. Wong Hip Keung Jimmy, aged 53, is the Director-Retail and
Corporate Sales of Kingston Securities Limited. Mr Wong is
responsible for overseeing the dealing department which includes
both securities and futures products. He has a Bachelor Degree in
Accounting from the Golden Gate University in San Francisco, CA,
USA. With extensive experience in securities and capital markets,
he is specialized in securities & futures broking, compliance and
administrative functions. He is registered as a representative under
Type 1 (dealing in securities) and as a Responsible Officer under
Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities. He joined
the Group in October 1996.

Mr. Ho Chi Ho, aged 38, is a director of Kingston Corporate
Finance Limited. Mr. Ho is responsible for origination and
execution of corporate finance transactions including mergers and
acquisitions, corporate and capital restructuring, business projects
evaluation, and equity and debt fund raising. Mr. Ho has extensive
experience in banking and capital markets, and also held senior
position in corporate management in a Hong Kong listed company.
Mr. Ho holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a bachelor
degree in accounting and finance from The University of Hong
Kong. He is registered as a Responsible Officer under Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities. Mr. Ho had
worked with the Group from 2003 to 2007 and rejoined in August
2011.
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Mr. Keung Kelvin, aged 39, is the director of Kingston Asset
Management. Mr. Keung is responsible for supervising the
operation of the Group’s asset management department and
making investment decisions on behalf of clients. Mr. Keung
graduated from the Macquarie University, Australia, with a
Bachelor Degree of Commerce. Mr. Keung possesses extensive
experience in the financial industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Keung was the director and Responsible Officer of the asset
management department of Emperor Capital Limited. Mr. Keung
was the dealing director of Fortune (HK) Securities Limited
(formerly known as Hong Tong Hai Securities Limited) and was
licensed as a Responsible Officer to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) and Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities. Mr. Keung is licensed as a Responsible Officer of
Kingston Asset Management under Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activity. Mr. Keung joined the Group in December 2006.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of 3 years which commenced on 1 April
2011, and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than 6 months’ written notice.

All the independent non-executive directors are appointed for an
initial term of not more than 1 year.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party in which any Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2013 or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EE WG

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

At 31 March 2013, the following Directors had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required (a) to be notified to
the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements of the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies:

BEEEN
BE_Z-=F=-A=1+—"BLFE  ~x2F#H
B EBAENERBYERBRI X BERNE
BRITHREHX -

EENSRITBRAERIES ZERER

N

RE

RZFB—=F=ZA=1+—H SEFENARFLR
HiRwAE (E & R LB RGIF XV ER) 2
fn - HEAROIEST - B () REEF IS
RBIEXVEPEH 7 R F 8D BAME AR B SR
Fre EfAgm X R (BRREESZ RBEGRDIZ
X E LR SRR < BRIOXR)  H(0)R
1538 5 N BB 1R I 5 352 18R 7R Rd A\ B2 & XX P st &
Mz EFRESAR  KC)RELTARES
ETELRZHNRETRREAME AR A LI
Rt AEAERIARIAT -

Long positions in the Shares: f&ipeFeE -
Number of shares

of the Company No. of

AARRGHEE underlying Approximate

Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of

Name of Directors Interests Interests Company Total shareholding

AT EE A

EEpnA B AR NEEE ROEE By REBFD

Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah - 6,785,639,895 5,250,000,000 12,035,639,895 99.35%
FRELZL (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Mtat 1) (Btet2)

Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui - 6,785,639,895 5,250,000,000 12,035,639,895 99.35%
RARBEAE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htat 1) (Ktzt2)
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Notes:

(1) As at 31 March 2013, of the 6,785,639,895 shares, 1,894,699,896
shares are held by Sure Expert Limited, 15,939,999 shares are held
by Kingston Capital Limited and 4,875,000,000 shares are held by
Active Dynamic Limited. Both Sure Expert Limited and Active
Dynamic Limited are wholly owned by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (“Mrs.
Chu”) and Kingston Capital Limited is controlled by Mrs. Chu. Mr.
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui (“Mr. Chu”), the spouse of Mrs. Chu, is
deemed to be interested in these 6,785,639,895 shares.

(2) As at 31 March 2013, Mrs. Chu, through Active Dynamic Limited
held 5,250,000,000 convertible preference shares conferring rights
to subscribe for up to HK$4,200,000,000 in aggregate in cash for
5,250,000,000 new shares at the conversion price of HK$0.80
(subject to adjustments) per share. Mr. Chu is deemed to be
interested in the 5,250,000,000 underlying shares held by Mrs. Chu.

Save for those disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of the SFO
by any Director of the Chief Executive of the Company or their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code or which are
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in securities”, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2013 was the Company or any of its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or Chief Executives, nor any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company:

Number of shares

FERR

R-ZB—=F=ZA=+—08  BEARAREZES
EHEGOIFEIBHREFEZ T ERRELM

ERITRATHEABEEDRLRR

of the Company No. of

EATRRBEE underlying Approximate

Personal Corporate  shares of the percentage of

Name of Shareholders Interests Interests Company Total shareholding

AATEEE BEA

IR R & ARz NEEE gniggE| me RETDL

Sure Expert Limited - 1,894,699,896 - 1,894,699,896 15.64%
(Note 1)(Kiat 1)

Active Dynamic Limited - 4,875,000,000 5,250,000,000 10,125,000,000 83.58%
(Note 2)(fffzx2)

Better Sino Limited (Note 3) - 1,125,000,000 - 1,125,000,000 9.29%

FEARAR(A:E3)

Mr. Lee Wai Man (Note 4) 18,852,000  1,530,750,000 - 1,549,602,000 12.79%

TENEE (K E4) (Note 5)

(FtzE5)

Notes: Hiat -

(1) Sure Expert Limited is wholly owned by Mrs. Chu. The interests of (1)  Sure Expert Limited 3 FE X + 2 EHH - L+
Mrs. Chu and Sure Expert Limited in the Company are stated under K Sure Expert Limited R 78 2 7] 2 1 2 8 1 _F X
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests and [EFERERITBAERESR Em RKE |—FD
short positions in securities” above.

(2)  Active Dynamic Limited is wholly owned by Mrs. Chu. The interests ~ (2)  Active Dynamic Limited HEX 1+ 2 EH#E - FL
of Mrs. Chu and Active Dynamic Limited in the Company are stated =+ K Active Dynamic Limited IR 2 5] 2 1 2 # 7%
under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests EXTEFLESRITEABRESFZ#Em RAE ]
and short positions in securities” above. —Ef °

(3)  Better Sino Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Ma Siu Fong, mother of — (3) 1#EBRAFIHFLLHEHEFLF L1+ 2 EMH
Mrs. Chu. A e

(4)  Mr. Lee Wai Man (“Mr. Lee”) is the father of Mrs. Chu. (4) FEXGE(FHL])BELLTHLH -

(5) As at 31 March 2013, of the 1,5630,750,000 shares, 405,750,000  (5) RZFE—=F=H=+—H " 1®1,530,750,000 %

shares are held by Choose Right Limited, a company wholly owned
by Mr. Lee. 1,125,000,000 shares are held by Better Sino Limited.
Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in these 1,125,000,000 shares
beneficially owned by Ms. Ma Siu Fong, Mr. Lee’s spouse.

17 - 405,750,000 B iR 17 Be 35 78 4 2 BHE A H)
Choose Right Limited#¥ & + i1 1,125,000,000 &
BLRIBEEBR R AFE - FHALWHE AR
ZHMEE L L e AR 1,125,000,000 A%
BHREE D -

SHESRMEBMERAT —T =FFR LY
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Save for those disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the connected transactions entered into by the Company
are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Details of significant events after reporting date of the Group are
set out in note 48 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Messrs Graham H.Y. Chan & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2012.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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|IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEER1115E
JKL L2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingston
Financial Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 45 to 164, which comprise
the consolidated and company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

HEFETRMEBERLE
(REFZEEIMALZBRAA)
(v

AR ERSFELHEBARAR(ER
A1) R E MBS 2 7] (5578 [ B ) 83 45 = 164
B2 AMBRE  EPaER -2 —=F=5
S+—B2GARATHBRAE  URBER
AIEFE2 A2 ERNE GARNEDER
HARSRBERETEQHREHERE 3
B -

EERGREUBERRZER

BERREFARERBEBTEGITNAERMLE
BUBREENRBERIEI 2 HKERE -
HEBRRFZHGEUBHRE  REEEERR
WBHBZRAEESH - AEREEMBBRRTFER
IRRRFF S E8 AR M G B E A SH AR B -

BEET 2 B1E

ARz BEARBRMOER  RRBHA
PMBRRERER  WRBAREATEF0H
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel

Practising Certificate Number P01220

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

2 A 42 3L
rEBEm
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHZE =E=A=+—RHItFE
1.4.2012 to 1.1.2011 to
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-CF —T——F
A—HZ —H—R=E
—E-=F —E——F
=ZRA=t—-A =A=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iogz3 FTET TR
Revenue Wi 7 1,377,988 1,573,971
Other income Hibdg A 8 15,727 35,713
1,393,715 1,609,684
Inventory consumed FiiERGE (22,697) (26,307)
Staff costs 8 TAA 9 (169,226) (165,109)
Gaming commission EREAE (170,827) (233,623)
Broker commission KrRme (30,068) (44,543)
Interest expenses for securities brokerage and BHELERRECHEER
margin financing operations 2B (43,093) (43,585)
Depreciation e (109,103) (118,365)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE YR BR SR A B 1B (874) (27,799)
Administrative expenses THRAX (122,688) (131,832)
Other operating expenses Hip @Y (64,334) (61,681)
(732,910) (852,844)
Finance income BB U A 5,427 11,573
Finance cost BEMKA 10 (56,552) (54,290)
Loss from sales of trading securities HERHHEFH Z EE (195) (74,688)
Fair value loss on trading securities RPBEH N FEEE (759) (15,817)
Exchange (loss)/gain &5 (B18), W (4,781) 11,999
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land METHRIEF 2 BMHAH
and buildings 10,732 4,521
Share of results of jointly controlled entities AERREGIEBEE 22 (435) (235)
(46,563) (116,937)
Profit before taxation MRS 12 614,242 639,903
Taxation BiE 11 (74,209) (83,512)
Profit for the year/period F /YRR 540,033 556,391
Attributable to: T 5B I RELL
Owners of the Company RARIEEA 13 537,884 548,988
Non-controlling interests IR 2R 2,149 7,403
540,033 556,391
Earnings per share (cents per share) BREF (BRAL) 15
— Basic — H®HK 3.10 3.69
— Diluted — s 3.10 3.65
SHNEUSHEBRRAT —T—=F5% 45



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N\ 7
I\‘/ =) EﬁTg i
For the year ended 31 March 2013

HZE =F=A=+—HItFE
1.4.2012 to 1.1.2011 to
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
At —T——F
B—HZ =E=E=
—E—=F —E——fF
=A=+—-H =HA=t—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat TET THET
Profit for the year/period /B REF 540,033 556,391
Other comprehensive income HinZ2ERA 16
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land HELRIEF 2 BE A%
and buildings 304,229 291,011
Available-for-sale investments: A HERE
Unrealised gain/(loss) arising from REEEBEE 2 RER
change in fair value Wzt (&18) 323 (1,388)
Other comprehensive gain for the F/HREMEERA
year/period, net of tax HIBR i1 304,552 289,623
Total comprehensive income £/ HAEERALE
for the year/period 844,585 846,014
Attributable to: ik -
Owners of the Company RNABHER A 842,436 838,611
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS e 2,149 7,403
844,585 846,014
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re AR

As at 31 March 2013
R=_ZF—=F=H=1—H

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=F =
=A=+—H =BR=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE THET FHETT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NMERE 19 2,847,791 2,544,837
Deferred tax assets FEETRIEE = 38 6,107 6,107
Deposit for hotel renovation BIEEF 25 & 1,128 9,191
Statutory deposit for financial business SREREELS 4,452 2,773
Goodwill RS 20 10,996,683 10,996,683
Interests in jointly controlled entities REEEGIE RS 2w 22 1,281 1,818
13,857,442 13,561,409

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 2,942 3,366
Available-for-sale investments AN ERE 24 4,895 4,572
Trading securities R G EH 25 50,121 51,365
Loan receivable FEWE X 26 406,827 414,820
Trade and other receivables B5 REMEIKEERR 27 6,408,637 4,752,415
Tax recoverable A Y [E 75 18 990 895
Cash and bank balances — trust accounts RE NIRTES — E5ERF 28 731,306 584,197
Cash and bank balances — general accounts RE NIBTESG — —REF 29 188,102 145,172
7,793,820 5,956,802

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M AR SR 30 872,082 698,469
Amounts due to shareholders e IE R FIE 31 1,661,111 1,924,411
Loan from a related company KE—FKEEARER 32 2,289,821 16,017
Subordinated loans BEEX 33 700,000 700,000
Promissory notes 7 E R 35 961,200 -
Bank loans RITER 34 150,000 981,000
Tax payable FERTARIE 31,363 9,933
6,665,577 4,329,830
Net current assets hEEEFE 1,128,243 1,626,972
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 14,985,685 15,188,381
SHESHEMERAT —T—=44%R 47



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE IR SR
As at 31 March 2013
MR=2-=5= H= 76

31.3.2013 3118}, 2101112
—E-=K =T ==
ZA=t—-A =H=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hrat FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEF B A& 38 158,670 120,379
Promissory notes A= 35 - 924,648
158,670 1,045,027
Total liabilities =Rt 6,824,247 5,374,857
Net assets EEFE 14,827,015 14,143,354
Capital and reserves EXR e
Share capital — ordinary shares fEAR — EE 39 242,290 240,865
Share capital — non-redeemable fR A — ] BE ] AT AR
convertible preference shares 1B A% 39 105,000 105,000
Reserves B 40 14,466,287 13,786,200
Total equity attributable to owners AAREEABIGERERE
of the Company 14,813,577 14,132,065
Non-controlling interests IEFE AR R == 13,438 11,289
Total equity AR 14,827,015 14,143,354
On behalf of the Board REREZEZR
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KK ZHE
Director Director
EF EE
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Statement of Financial Position

SRR

As at 31 March 2013

R=_ZF—=F=H=1—H
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E=F 24
ZA=+t-B =HA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE TR FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEKEE 19 3,507 104
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIRE 21 13,869,809 13,763,463
Investments in jointly controlled entities RAREHIEE ZIKE 22 - 104
13,873,316 13,763,671
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayment e RIEN IR 27 7,706 8,643
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — M B A m A 21 406,836 414,824
Cash and bank balances — general accounts R NIRITES — —REF 29 21,673 21,650
436,215 445 117
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payable and accruals Hib e IR X FERTE 30 13,068 13,320
Amounts due to shareholders e AL R FIE 31 900,000 900,000
Promissory notes A 35 961,200 =
1,874,268 913,320
Net current liabilities RBAEFEE (1,438,053) (468,203)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAERE 12,435,263 13,295,468
Non-current liability FRBEE
Promissory notes A B 35 - 924,648
Net assets EEEE 12,435,263 12,370,820
Capital and reserves BEARK &
Share capital — ordinary shares AR — ik 39 242,290 240,865
Share capital — non-redeemable convertible AR — ] BE Bl A AR 2 55 AR
preference shares 39 105,000 105,000
Reserves i 40 12,087,973 12,024,955
Total equity EREE 12,435,263 12,370,820
On behalf of the Board REEEFR
Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui Chu Yuet Wah
KX#B FTHE
Director Director
EE EE
SHESHEMERAT —T—=44%R 49



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,\\/ AY

—H= N\ / 4=
1‘ / ~ l%l:m\

EER

For the year ended 31 March 2013

HE=T  =F=H= N0 H I
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
VNG LN 5
Share
capital —
non-
Share redeemable Share-
capital — convertible Share Capital Property based Investment Exchange Non-
ordinary preference  premium redemption Contributed revaluation  payment revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
shares shares  account  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total  interest equity
A —
FUEE NRBH
BA— TR Bt EARE nE  ERXf REEH EXE®
EER BER RER RE  AMRR  ERRE 1] e #E  REEN ax FERER EREER
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HKS000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TEL FEL FEL TEL TAL TAL TAT TAR
At1 January 2011 R=2--F
-A-H 103,198 - 2393376 284 814 608,990 36,835 3,653 235 668,482 3,815,867 3886 3,819,753
Profit for the period HREF - - - - - - - - - 548,988 548,988 7,403 556,391
Other comprehensive BRERZERA
income for the period - - - - - 291,011 - (1,388) - - 289623 - 289623
Total comprehensive BR2ERAES
income for the period - - - - - 291,011 - (1,388) - 548988 838,611 7,403 846,014
Realised upon depreciation &+t RigFE
based onrevalued amount  SERTEREE
of land and building = = = = = (17,219) - - - 17,219 - - -
Share repurchase EERR (182) - (6,680) 182 - - - - - (182) (6,862) - (6,862)
Share placement RERH 17,800 - 854,100 - - - - - - - 871900 - 871900
Issue of shares under RiEE RS
share option scheme Bk 49 - 2,043 - - - (524) - - - 1,568 - 1,568
Issue of ordinary shares for ~ REUEENBARZET
acquisition of subsidiaries LRk 120,000 - 6,180,000 - - - - - - - 6,300,000 - 6,300,000
Issue of non-redeemable HRERBARET
convertible preference TAERAER
shares for acquisition of BRER
subsidiaries - 105,000 2,290,106 - - - - - - - 239,106 - 239,106
Share-based payments IR AERE 2 2 - - - - - - 2,384 = = = 2,384 = 2,384
Forfeiture of share options R E - - - - - - (1,936) = = 1,936 = = =
Payment of dividends ERRE - - - - - - - - - (86509) (86509 - (86509)
At 31 March 2012 R-B-=F
ZA=t-H 240,865 105,000 11,712,945 466 814 882,782 36,759 2,265 235 1149934 14,132,065 11,289 14,143 354
At 1 April 2012 R-B-ZF
mA-H 240,865 105,000 11,712,945 466 814 882,782 36,759 2,265 235 1,149,934 14,132,065 11,289 14,143,354
Profit for the year FRREF - - - - - - - - - 537,884 537,884 2,149 540,033
Other comprehensive FRERZERA
income for the year - - - - - 304,229 - 323 - - 304,552 - 304,552
Total comprehensive FARERANEE
income for the year - - - - - 304,229 - 323 - 537,884 842,436 2,149 844,585
Realised upon depreciation R+t RIEFE(E
based on revalued amount £ ERITER:
of land and building #5 - - - - - (23,429) - - - 23,429 - - -
Issue of shares under REERETE
share option scheme BIRG 1,425 - 27,035 - - - (6,233) - - - 22,227 - 22,221
Share-based payments MRAAERZ
Sff - - - - - - 494 - - - 494 - 494
Forfeiture of share options R RE - - - - - - (31,020) - - 31,020 - - -
Payment of dividends RARE - - - - - - - - - (173,645)  (173,645) - (173,645)
Payment of dividend to RS
non-controlling interest AR S - - - - - - - - - (10,0000  (10,000) - (10,000)
At31 March 2013 R=2-Z%F
ZA=t-H 242,290 105,000 11,739,980 466 814 1,163,582 - 2,588 235 1,558,622 14,813,577 13,438 14,827,015
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=IAN AN Sl
meaeRnER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BHE-Z—=F=-"A=-1+—HItFE

1.4.2012 to 1.1.2011 to
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—F-=F —F—F
A—B% —H—H=E
—E-=fF —E——F
=A=+-8B =A=1-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBMBRENE
Profit before income tax expense B 15 i B <2 AV A 614,242 639,903
Adjustments for: B TFIBIEELRE
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities FEE X REH B EE 435 235
Finance cost & KA 56,552 54,290
Finance income mEWA (5,427) (25,099)
Dividend income A B A (2,712) (3,893)
Loss on disposal of trading securities HERSHES BB 195 =
Depreciation e 109,103 118,365
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEREEE ZEBE 503 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment ME - B R A 11,856 -
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables B 5 R EA RO E R 1E 874 27,799
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and OB S REM
other receivables FEW R R BB (1,359) -
Unrealised exchange loss REIE HEE 7,993 34
Fair value loss on trading securities R G52 A THEBE 759 15,817
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land METHRIEFEMRALR
and buildings (10,732) (4,521)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses T RUWUAR D BER S 2% 494 2,384
Operating profit before working capital changes BB BB BRI 2 KERT 782,776 825,314
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/(Em) 424 (441)
Decrease in trading securities RZBHRL - 74,688
(Increase)/decrease in statutory deposit for financial CRER EERS
business (g m), md (1,679) 19
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 REMEYEETR (3L m), Hd (1,655,737) 1,744,545
(Decrease)fincrease in cash and bank balances B MIRITHH — EEERP
— trust accounts CRl), /4 m (147,109) 196,769
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMmEMERZEM () 173,613 (655,132)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations mExR(FR)/MELXERS (847,712) 2,285,762
Income taxes paid BEREH (56,069) (145,132)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities & & %% (FTR) /P55 & F%8 (903,781) 2,140,630
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE—=F—=F=H=1T-HIFE

1.4.2012 to 1l 120071119
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
e —F—F
A—HZ —F—El=
—EB-=fF —E——F
=A=+-B =ZA=1-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Cash flows from investing activities REZHMBRENE
Investment in jointly controlled entities RERZEHIBEZIRE 102 (2,053)
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and SRNBEVE BENREER
equipment (60,242) (46,650)
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries TRHKENBARER - (1,561,608)
Proceeds from sale of trading securities REHER HHEAFISHE 290 10,815
Proceeds from disposal of property, RELEWE  BERKE
plant and equipment P15 738 336 -
Interest received 2 UF B 5,427 11,573
Dividend received B AR S 2,712 3,893
Net cash used in investing activities REEBAREFE (51,375) (1,584,030)
Cash flows from financing activities METHMERENE
Issue of shares TR - 871,900
Issue of shares under share option scheme RIRRE AR 8 B 1Tk 22,227 1,568
Share repurchase BERG - (6,862)
(Decrease)fincrease in amounts due to shareholders e AR IR FRE CRi ),/ hn (263,300) 474,411
Increase/(decrease) in loan from a related company W —RmE LA R EFEMN (R) 2,273,804 (916,062)
Repayment of subordinated loan EEBEER - (300,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (831,000) (1,047,000)
Interest paid BEATF & (20,000) (20,000)
Dividend paid EfRE (183,645) (86,509)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities L& EEIFE,/(PTH) I & 55 998,086 (1,028,554)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  BR&RIRESEEBE LI (K ) E5E 42,930 (471,954)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period % /#i#131 ¢ RIS ZEIER 145,172 617,126
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period F /KA S RESEEER 188,102 145,172
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

CORPORATE INFORMATION 1 AFEH
The Company was incorporated as an exempted company ARABR—ANANFENA+BERBERRE
with limited liability in Bermuda on 10 April 1996 under the — NN\ —FRDEE B RE Mk S AEES
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Company’s shares SHEBRAT - XABIRME — N NLAFEH
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong “t=BRERREBHMEXZSFIER A A ([H
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 23 July 1996. The RETD)EM e ARARzAdMBEEREESE
address of its registered office and principal place of EMEAER [ ABER | —EIEE -
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.
The Company’s parents are Active Dynamic Limited (“Active VNN Bl A &) AActive Dynamic
Dynamic”) and Sure Expert Limited (“Sure Expert”) and the Limited ([ Active Dynamic]) & Sure Expert
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider its Limited ([Sure Expert]) * T &K A & & &
ultimate holding company is Active Dynamic. Active Dynamic TE=E|)ZBHEZKERA A AActve
and Sure Expert are both incorporated in the British Virgin Dynamic ° Active Dynamic & Sure Expert 3
Islands (the “BVI"). RRBRLES ([ RBRELHS ML -
The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively AR RENBRAINR TXHmEAIAE
referred to as the “Group”. The principal activity of the B  ARRIlZzTBXEKDAKREZER A
Company continues to be investment holding. The principal B ARz EEXBEH NI BmEMTE21
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.
The financial year end date of the Group has been changed AREBZHHRFEFEAHCH T -_A=+—
from 31 December to 31 March to conform with the financial BEXRA=A=1+—8  BREHKBEAQR
year end date of its subsidiary, Kingston Capital Asia Limited. Kingston Capital Asia Limited 2 B4 BR&F & 45
Accordingly the current financial period covered a twelve- HH—H Bt BTV HHABRE_F
month period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and the ——FWA—BE-_ZE—=F=ZA=+—
comparative figures covered a fifteen-month period from 1 B 28+—@8: MEERHFRE—F
January 2011 to 31 March 2012. ==fE=Fl=FE=ZS=2%= J ==
B SE+AHMEA -
ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 RMBEBMBHREER( BB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —

HmELER 1)
(@) HMF]RETEEBHBR

effective 1 April 2012 HEA — —E—-—FWA—H
AN
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyper Inflation and ERRBRELENE 1% BEERRIB
Removal of Fixed Dates for CHEY) BRRAEN
First-time Adopters ElE A H

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of EERBRLERS 75 BE —EZSpEE
Financial Assets (B3I R)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of EACHEHS 125 EERE
Underlying Assets (1B3TK) — kRS E

The adoption of these amendments has no material BN It S5 15 5T 3 7N &= B B 765 5l 3% 3 4
impact on the Group’s financial statements. EATE
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RIS RaR B R

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1
(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 20

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle?
Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income!
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
Financial Instruments*
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?
Fair Value Measurement?
Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Employee Benefits?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Ming?

Government loans?

Investment entities®

Transition Guidance®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosure*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle
The improvements made amendments to five
standards.

(i)

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRS
Issue — repeated application of HKFRS 1

The amendment applies to entities that have
applied HKFRS in a previous reporting period, but
whose most recent previous annual financial
statements did not contain an explicit and
unreserved statement of compliance with HKFRS.
The financial statement prepare in this situation
may either prepare financial statements in
accordance with HKFRS 1 or apply HKFRS
retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8.

Issue — borrowing costs

The improvement clarifies that a first-time adopter
is allowed to carry forward the amount previously
capitalised under its previous GAAP in the
opening statement of financial position at the date
of transition. Borrowing costs incurred on or after
the date of transition relating to qualifying assets
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 23,
even if the construction of qualifying asset
commences before the transition date.

RAEBUEREER ([FBE
B|REED ]

(b) BEMEBERERZHT &
BT E BB HRELER @)
ERMBHREER(BTA) — =8
BhE-B-——FRAMZEELRE
$FIE A A SO RIS T -

() BEUBEHREEAEIFE AR
MEBEBRI S &R
B — BEERAEAYMHRSE
RIS 15%
ZIETTEARE R BE RS R
EEREAMHBELERNZE
BRI FEMBEHRRL A
BEETRABYBRELEZH
RN ERE 2 BAE - EUIER
T MBHRR 2 REEARES
7B B 5 i 2 Rl 5B 1 SR AR LB 75
BRIBEE B S ERIF SR
EPRAEEMGHREER -

B — EERAR

RECEB B A ERRNE LS
BEREIE B BB ERA
RIBEEMARGTRANTIAE
ez w8 - RIBEB LK
EEZEBAEREEZEBEK
ATREBEEE G ERE 235
AR AR BEREENBIKR
HiRTC FSAIEE
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56

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to
present a third statement of financial position
when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the information
in that statement of financial position. The date of
the opening statement of financial position is the
beginning of the preceding period and not, as at
present, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period. The amendments also clarify that, except
for disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-44 and
HKAS 8, the related notes to the third statement of
financial position are not required to be
presented. An entity may present additional
voluntary comparative information as long as that
information is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. This may include one or more statements
and not a complete set of financial statements.
Related notes are required for each additional
statement presented.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as spare
parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment are recognised as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such
items are classified as inventory.

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2013

2 HEMBEMBHREEN(TEEM

HmEER )@

(b) BEMEBEKRERZHT &
BT BB BEREER &)
ERMBREEN(BTA) — =8
BhE-B-——FRMZFEELRE®)

(ii)

(iii)

BB E I ERFE 1R FRERZ
27

ZIEETRE  EERERTEN
SR BUR SR E B 75 R 4578 B
BYPEINEF L EMEZSNE=
DEIERIR R 2 IR EEBEARE
ZHERREAZERNEREE
HEZIFN - UM BERREZ
A=t —ERHA I A R - M
F(HEBRIAL)RF A L&
MFRE - ZZERIINESE B
BB S EREA141-445: B
EeERFERBEEZWE
SN BEBE=NHEHRRES
fieE - BRI BEESREINLER
BE EEEENMAREES
ISR ERIRE - Al RE B IR
—RZHRE ME—FETE
IS RK - FT 25 2 & K5Ik
FEAZ5EREKEE -

BBEEREI6HYE - B
BRRE

ZEERRBE AT - BARE
REERETHRETAME ]|
FER#EEHzERR  AHERR®
RAME - BFER&EE - TR
BEREEDBERES -



Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR MR

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(iv) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation

v)

The amendments clarify that income tax relating
to distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes. Depending on the
circumstances these items of income tax might
be recognised in equity, other comprehensive
income or in profit or loss.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial
statements, a measure of total assets and
liabilities for a particular reportable segment need
to be disclosed when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker
and there has been a material change in the total
assets and liabilities for that segment from the
amount disclosed in the last annual financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation
of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the
Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant
and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.
The amendments will be applied retrospectively.

RAEBUEREER ([FBE
B|REED ]

(b) TIMIEN K2 B 5T

BRI EBMBREEN @

BEETBEREEA(BFTR) — =F

ENZE_E——FRHEEIE®H)

(iv) BEBCERAZEREcHTA :
=27l
ZEBERBRARATAEZEEA
EH DR EBRARZ 5 2R B
Z ISR - BREE B!
ERH|E12 BT AR - 8F
FRER - WEFTEFIEE 7] AL
PR 2 mEmRA ISR T
TR o

(v) BB EERE 345 R %
HE
BRAERTEE - £ MM B HRE
B E B — R E AT S ) &R i
AEZEERARBRETIEHRR
TERERREER MO H
ZEENAGBRERLE—HFE
MBHRERABREERERE
W AIBERBEEHEENAER
BZFTE -

EREERNBE1R(EITR) (B
7)) —Ht2EBAEBZ25)
FAEGFTERE 15RUEFTA) (EIER])
REARBK2IRNEMEEBEALZ
BHEDRZEARNAKREFDEE
BazBAB(WAHLESREECLE
B RZERVEEHDBERSE
ZBEB (Y% - BB kR E 2 EHG
B) - LA 2 AIE B 82 HIR
SRMEREENEEREE - ARER]
HEPREM
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

2 BRAEBHMBHREER(FBEH
BREED

(b) B MR M & E M2 HET

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) — Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture
capital organisations, pension funds and investment
funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities to
measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than to consolidate them. The
amendments also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments are applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BRMERBUKREEN (B
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHmEER ) @)

(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZH &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value
gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and
losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9
carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.

BT B BMBHREER ()
ERMBHREREAEIR —SRMITA
REBFEMBEHRELAEIN - SBE
EDBRERAFERREHNATE
ZERMEE BHORREBEESRE
EZEBEAREREEZANRS
MERR - A FEBESINERER
HHRETHERGRARE - BRI
BEREMEENERERER - &
BMBHRERAERERELES
EHEREHERBERR D8
MABRE  HRAFEFABEZEZ
TREBERI ZREZEERRE
BREZATEESSEREMBEE
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

2 BRAEBHMBHREER(FBEH
BREED

(b) B MR M & E M2 HET

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights
to variable returns from the investee and the ability to
use the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e.
the holder has the practical ability to exercise them.
The standard explicitly requires an assessment of
whether an investor with decision making rights is
acting as principal or agent and also whether other
parties with decision making rights are acting as agents
of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of
and for the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may
result in changes in those entities which are regarded
as being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.
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REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHmEER ) @)

(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZH &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS 31.
Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint operator
and will recognise its interests in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS 11
does not allow proportionate consolidation. In an
arrangement structured through a separate vehicle, all
relevant facts and circumstances should be considered
to determine whether the parties to the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Previously, the existence of a separate legal entity was
the key factor in determining the existence of a jointly
controlled entity under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will be
applied retrospectively with specific restatement
requirements for a joint venture which changes from
proportionate consolidation to the equity method and a
joint operation which changes from equity method to
accounting for assets and liabilities.
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(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
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issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It also
introduces new disclosure requirements, including
those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of
a reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies to
both financial and non-financial items measured at fair
value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements
on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted
early and is applied prospectively.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BRMERBUKREEN (B
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHmEER ) @)

(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZH &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HKAS 19 (2011) — Employee Benefits

HKAS 19 (2011) abandons the corridor approach with
the result that changes in defined benefit obligations
and the fair value of plan assets are recognised in the
period in which they occur. The revised standard
requires the changes in the Group’s net defined benefit
liability (or asset) to be separated into three
components: service cost (including current and past
service cost and settlements) recognised in profit or
loss; net interest on the net defined benefit liability
recognised in profit or loss; and re-measurements of
the defined benefit liability (or asset) recognised in
other comprehensive income. The revised standard
distinguishes between short-term and long-term
employee benefits based on the expected date of
settlement. The previous standard used the term “due
to be settled”. This change may result in more plans
being classified as long-term employee benefit plans.
HKAS 19 (2011) provides additional guidance on the
definition of termination benefits. Benefits that are
conditional on future service being provided including
those that increase if additional service is provided are
not termination benefits. The revised standard requires
that a liability for termination benefits is recognised on
the earlier of the date when the entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and the date the
entity recognises any related restructuring costs. This
could lead to later recognition of voluntary termination
benefits in some cases. The amendments will generally
be applied retrospectively with two exceptions.

BT B BMBHREER ()
EREHEAE19R (=T ——F) —
BEEEF

BB ARNE 19K (ZT——F)E
BREERE SRAETRMNETEE
25 MitSBEZ A FERELS
BHER - KRIEFTERIREANEE Z R
ERNEE(HEE)FESD K=
2B - MERER Z REAA (BIER
5 MOBERIGAA RER) « RIBaHE
RZAEBINBEFBEIFMNE T K
REMEHEBVAERZEHNTERTE
BHBE(REE) - KETERRE
EHENRHRIEHLARBEESR
M e SERTZERIARA [BIMEER] B
R WREB A ENFE LI DE
AERHBEBSRNEE - BESEL
F1R(ZF——F)HRIERH 22
FRMEINES| - B AREHRS
AAER @M BEZFRERN
ARTE MR AR B NI AR LEAR ) o
RIETRERTE  KLEBRMOAER
THRmPHLEARER : BRI
BERHEZEFEMN A AL EEBER
EAABEEAKRANBEH - EETIB
ST WWEBGER R 8RR LEEF
BRRIER AT RN BB AR E
BEPIER

SHESRMEBMERAT —T =FFR 63



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS RaR B R

2

64

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been

2 BRAEBHMBHREER(FBEH
BREED

(b) B MR M & E M2 HET

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 20 — Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Stripping activities carried out in the production phase
of a surface mine may give rise to two benefits: usable
ore that can be used to produce inventory and
improved access to further quantities of material that
will be mined in future periods. The Interpretation
requires that costs of stripping activity are accounted
for in accordance with the principles in HKAS 2
Inventories to the extent that the benefit from stripping
activity is realised in the form of inventory produced.
The costs of stripping activity that provide a benefit in
the form of improved access to ore are recognised as a
non-current stripping activity asset when certain criteria
are met. This asset will be accounted for as an addition
or enhancement to an existing asset and is classified
as tangible or intangible according to the nature of the
existing asset of which it forms part. The stripping
activity asset is measured initially at cost and
subsequently in the same way as the existing asset of
which it forms part. It is depreciated or amortised on a
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the
component of the ore body that becomes more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The
interpretation is applied to production stripping costs
incurred after the beginning of the earliest period
presented. Predecessor stripping activity asset balance
is reclassified as a part of an existing asset subject to
the conditions in the Interpretation.
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2 ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2 BRMERBUKREEN (B
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BHmEER ) @)

(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZH &

issued but are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 1 — Government Loans

The amendments add an exception to the retrospective
application of HKFRSs to require that first-time adopters
apply the requirements in HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and HKAS 20 Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Governance Assistance
prospectively to government loans existing at the date
of transition to HKFRSs.

This means that first-time adopters will not recognise
the corresponding benefit of the government loan at a
below market rate of interest as a government grant.
However, entities may choose to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 9 and HKAS 20 to government
loans retrospectively if the information needed to do so
had been obtained at the time of initially accounting for
that loan.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the Directors are not yet in a position to quantify
the effects on the Group’s financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except certain
properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values or revalued amounts as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 4.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of

4 FEIHHE
(a) ¥BEHRGEERE

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss. The
results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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(continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of

4 FERFTBEEX®
(a) EBEHRGZEEE®W

68

consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first
applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in
accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first
application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to
estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing the control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale.
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70

(continued)
(c) Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

Jointly controlled entities are accounted for using equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at cost
and thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
jointly controlled entities’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entities are not recognised unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses.

Any premium paid for a jointly controlled entity above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
jointly controlled entity and the entire carrying amount
of the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell.

The Company’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Results of
jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Goodwill arising from business

4 FESHTBER®
(d) ZXEOFELEESE

combinations

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over
the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after reassessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

The land classified as being held under finance leases
and buildings thereon are stated at valuation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Fair value is
determined by an independent firm of qualified property
valuers. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings held for own use are generally dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to profit or loss.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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SRR MR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

4 FESHTBER®
(e) M¥ BERRZHE=

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

— Building situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion.

—  Leasehold improvement, furniture,

fixture and equipment

—  Motor vehicles

—  Yacht

10%-50%

20%—-33%
10%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs costs, such as maintenance
costs are charged to profit or loss during the year in
which they are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Upon the disposal of property, the relevant portion of
the revaluations reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

74

()

(9)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expenses, over the term of the lease.

Inventories

Inventories comprise food and beverage, consumable
and other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make to
the sales.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

76

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

U

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets
are part of a group of financial assets which is
managed and its performance evaluated on a fair
value basis according to a documented
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need
to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SRR MR

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtors’ financial difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

(continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade and other payables and loans and
borrowings, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss. Gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset where
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or where the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are ready convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

80

()

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and investments in subsidiaries and associate to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value
in use) of a non-financial asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Employee benefits

(M)

(if)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits in the form of
leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the company in
an independently-administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. The company’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

For all its employees in Macau, fixed contributions
are made based on the employment term and are
charged to profit and loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
retirement security system.

Obligations for contributions to social security
fund are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.
Details regarding the share-based payments are
set out in note 4(!).
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Employee benefits (continued)

82

U

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits as
a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Share-based
payments to employees and others providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Share-based payments
to parties other than employees (and those providing
similar services) are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, unless that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably. If the Group cannot
estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or services
received, the Group is required to measure the fair
value by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. Details regarding the
determination of the fair value of share-based payments
are set out in note 37.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the services rendered in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense and
credited to a share-based payment reserve under
equity. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve over the remaining vesting period.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U

(m)

Share-based payments (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to share premium.
The proceeds received net of any direct attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share-based
payment reserve will be released directly to retained
earnings.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.

4 FESHTBER®

M

(m)

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

URHAEER 2@

B EEITER - BERUKRG AE
WISz EEPERZEREEERS
R (735 8 o P18 R IBEFIBR I B %
JEIE R S AN E T AR (FE) &%
m (B o & AR R e R & B
AT - BIBER ARG AER
Sz @ERER ZEEBEZRED

EREEF

Frig %t
T 54 B X 4 B0 53 7 4 72 98 B T
2 48 -

BIVER FE A R IR AR R 4 0 B AR B M) At
- mgNERTEN TN EBREMFE
ZRERABBAKAIANBRFEL - TR
RHARR KN SN < B RIAR -
B FE SR TS A B B NAR B B R P
FIAER - AEEAHIRIAZ BETIIR
RBEHRERMRELR/M 2 HEX
BEE -

EREBARA B RERMIEERAE
AR T B B2 5T B SR A P AR AR R AR
EMEZZRER - —REARAARE
AN EREERRECHBAGE - M
EREFIAEEREN AR A A ER
75328 ) LA PR /B 000 L B = BB A B o
o B B = A 2K B 1) 2 RERR Y I RR B
MR EHEMNBTELR S (XHAH
fRoM 2 BERBE - AT EERZE
BEKRAE -

—T-=F5R 83



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS RaR B R

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

84

(n)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to the profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(o) Revenue recognition

4 FESHTBER®
(o) Wz=ER

Brokerage commission is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Underwriting fee and placing fee are recognised as
income in accordance with the terms of the
underwriting and placing agreements or deal mandate
when the relevant significant acts have been
completed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

Revenue arising from service provided for gaming
operations in mass market halls, electronic gaming
halls and VIP rooms is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered and the Group is entitled
to the share of gross win and gross loss in respect of
the operating performance from the gaming operator.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised
upon the provision of the accommodation services.

Revenue from food and beverage sales and other
ancillary services are recognised upon the provision of
goods and services.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

86

(0)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

4 FESHTBER®

(ry BEAL
() MWHRIERER @ ZBALHZ
AANTHGORERAR R EARE E
BHE

(a) HAKRBAZEHERKR
YR I

(b) HAKBEEARTEN:
=

(c) BAEEXAATZAF
ITEEEMAS -

0/

(i) MEETHERER  ZEEE
WAR AR EEGRAE

k

(a) ZREREKASEER %
Ee K E (RIS AR - K
BRAAKRENBEARE
HREAE) °

(b) —EEESS ERAE
BATHAERE (IR
—SEKEMBEAL
KEERE Mz B

BRUHEENKE) -

(c) MEERSTRERE=T
MEERE -

(d —EERSF-"EENA
BhERS—ERBRF=
ERNBEAL-

() ZEBR/RASHIEAL
BEHENERENERR
T B AV RE R IR B AR

() ZEBRIOEMENAL
% | Sl R I o

(@) R(Na)BAHENALHE
BEEAFE H/ER

SHESRMEBMERAT —T =FFR 87



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS RaR B R

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FEEFBE®E

(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(iy  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

() BEAT®@®
FR AT 23 AR e TEE R
BIRHGPHEZBANTIS
HEIRIEKE - B
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(i) ZRBATZTFRZEEBEHKEEF
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(i) ZBATZEBXKEEHEZT
iR

(i) ZBAATHERBXREEHEZ
ZTEA

5 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION A THEERZZEERERE
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ST
JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements FAEMBRRIEREREEBFHERE
requires management to make judgements, estimates and P2 et FIST ﬁ?ﬁgﬁzégﬁﬁ/{&
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, HRBEREZHIE - B RERR -
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of HZERZRMMEFFE I RERRE —f %ﬁ(
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, FHRFEEEXBBARARZEHEELE
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could ﬁﬁﬂﬁ et R A o5 R R E R B
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to EERLEMEAR  BERNEEBR MR
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the 25%1#26\5%‘5% BRAGHTHRERERZ
future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated TE2RFHINWT
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment /E 3 Fﬁ%&%ﬂﬁzﬁﬂiﬁﬁ FH
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful REBESERNE 165 AEBGEFTY
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine ¥ BEMREZAEMASEH  UBEKT
the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The ABRZTERAXSHE - RBAKER » A%
useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired l?fEHFiE&ZW%ﬁ ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ BREREE - X
based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear SRR UIN=FS FRIBEELAEMB
and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence B - LMEH'ﬁT@ﬁH FH - AEBMEEF
arising from changes in the market demands or service YEH AT - PARIER 23 7] 2 R S BAPTERER =
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews BINAER -
on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to
be valid.
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SRR MR

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated fair value of leasehold properties
The fair value of each hotel property individually is
determined at the end of the reporting period by independent
professional valuers using the income approach whereby the
incomes derived from the hotel operations with regard to
past trading accounts and the rental income derived from
existing tenancies on the property interest are capitalised at
an appropriate rate of return with due allowance for
outgoings and expenses wherever applicable. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a
set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the
property and future economic conditions. The fair value of
each leasehold property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and an
appropriate discount and growth rate in order to calculate
the present value.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed.
Triggering events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business or
regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The
interpretation of such events requires judgement from
management with respect to whether such an event has
occurred.

Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying
amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the present
value of estimated net future cash flows which the Group
expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus
residual value of the asset on disposal. Where the
recoverable amount of non-financial assets is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised to write the
assets down to its recoverable amount.

The impairment assessment is performed based on the
discounted cash flow analysis. This analysis relies on factors
such as forecast of future performance and long-term growth
rates and the selection of discount rates. If these forecast
and assumptions prove to be inaccurate or circumstances
change, further write-down or reversal of the write-down of
the carrying value of the non-financial assets may be
required.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of trade and
other receivables. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit and loss when
there is objective evidence that the amounts is not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised based on the estimation of the future cash flow
expected to receive and a suitable discounted rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in Macau and Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of the related
payments. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will have impact on the income tax
and/or deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share option granted was calculated using
the Trinomial pricing model and Market Approach based on
the Group’s management’s significant inputs into calculation
included an estimated life of share options granted to be half
to three years based on exercise restrictions and behavioral
consideration, the volatility of share price, weighted average
share prices and exercise price of the share options granted,
the number of working hours and the consultant fees to be
charged in the provision of the consultancy service, etc.
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RIS RaR B R

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services, and has seven (31
March 2012: seven) reporting operating segments as follows:

Financial services segments:

— Securities brokerage, underwriting and placements
segment is the provision of brokerage, underwriting
and placements services for dealings in securities on
recognised stock exchanges.

— Margin and initial public offering (“IPO”) financing
segment is the provision of credits in these
transactions.

—  Other financial services include provision of corporate
finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management.

Hotel and gaming segments:

— Hotel ownership and management segment is the
operation of hotels and provision of hotel management
services.

— Food and beverage segment is the operation of
restaurants in hotels.

—  Casino segment is the operation of casino in hotels.
Securities investment segment:
—  Securities investment segment is the trading of listed

securities.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
above reportable operating segments.
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SRR MR

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation and
amortisation (adjusted EBITDA). Interest income and
expenditure and certain income and expenses (including
exchange difference, corporate staff costs & overhead,
depreciation, taxation, expenses in relation to the grant of
share options, impairment losses, write-off of property, plant
and equipment, revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
reversal of bad debts) are not included in the result of each
operating segment that is reviewed by the management.
Other information provided, except as noted below, to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the financial statements.

Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the income statement.
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 Z2HEERG®
Operating segments EFy Sk
The following tables represent segment information of the TREVMAEEERERRE 2 AKEE D H
Group provided to the Group’s management for the year REBE_ T =F=A=+—"HILFEKH
ended 31 March 2013 and fifteen months ended 31 March 2T —F=A=+—HI+HRBEAZ
2012, respectively. o rEER o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HBE—_ZFE—=F=H=+—HIFE
Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin Other Financial  ownership
and and IPO financial service and  Foodand Securities
placements  financing services  business management  beverage Casino  Investment Total
RELR
REEL ERAH it ¢REE  EREEA KRR
AEREE  RERE LB £33 RER Al BY  E5RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Thr Thn TEn Thr Thn TEn T Tén TR
Segment Revenue PEhE
Extemal customers NEP 150,578 453,410 12,980 616,968 178,738 39,482 542,800 - 1,377,988
Inter-segment PER Pl - 960 984 59,836 - 6,152 - 66,972
150602 453,410 18900 617952 238574 0482 548952 - 1444960
Adjusted EBITDA SRBRHFIS R
HEREHANER 165,578 407,583 12,982 566,143 169,179 (4,530) 207,305 1,733 959,830
Segment Assets TEEE 18,102,133 2,151,112 457,142 422,787 50,121 21,183,295
Capital expenditure EASH - 33,264 1474 23,704 - 64,442
Segment Liabilities PEEE 4,726,108 179,168 14,692 29,993 - 4,949,961
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6 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 oEER®
Operating segments (continued) e ()
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2012 HEr—_ T —F=A=1+—HIF+FEA
Securities
brokerage, Hotel
underwriting Margin QOther Financial ~ ownership
and and IPO financial service and Food and Securities
placements financing services business  management beverage Casino~ Investment Total
RESR
s A i eRRE  EEEA K@k
BERRE  EERE  oRRH 37 RER K BY  E5RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEn T T ThRL T TEx TEn T
Segment Revenue PRhE
External customers LS 179,787 489,762 20498 690,047 210443 47678 625,803 - 157397
Inter-segment PERH n - 960 1,031 78,235 - 6,715 - 85,981
179858 489762 20458 691078 288678 47678 632518 - 1659952
Adjusted EBITDA BREAFRE  FER -
HEREBHANER 187,102 457,253 20499 664,854 208318 (4474) 230077 (86,664) 1012111
Segment Assets PREE 16,309806 2,034,880 443,193 203,709 51364 19042951
Capital expenditure BA%H - 32,090 414 5439 - 37943
Segment Liabilities PEER 3,380,560 135,530 8,806 13,769 5 3,538,670
SRBSHEEFRAT —T— =454 95
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6 Z2HEERG®
Operating segments (continued) E 3%k A

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,
assets and liabilities

DR - BRABRFE - AEH - 78
RBEMBNREERREZHIR

1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E-ZF —T—F
MA—RAZE —H—H=
—E-= —E——F
=Z=A=+t—-HB =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET AT
Segment revenue oW = 1,444,960 1,659,952
Elimination of inter-segment revenue Eaki=RaR il e (66,972) (85,981)
Consolidated revenue SEEWER 1,377,988 1,573,971
Adjusted EBITDA RARRTRE - FTEH -
FERBHEAZT 959,830 1,012,111
Other income H U A 5,050 5,970
Interest income B A 734 17,952
Exchange (loss)/gain &3 (&18), Was (4,781) 11,999
Corporate staff cost AaE]B TR (73,054) (63,929)
Corporate overhead NGRS 4o (105,811) (145,647)
Depreciation e (109,103) (118,365)
Expenses in relation to the grant of BRAREEREZRAY
share option (494) (2,385)
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 REAMERRFOREEE
other receivables (874) (27,799)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 53 1k [Fl1% | & B 245 (435) (235)
Write off of property, plant and equipment #1% - = K& E s (11,856) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE - WEREEBE
plant and equipment (503) =
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land & i M EFE(H E ek
and buildings 10,732 4,521
Finance cost B R AN (56,552) (54,290)
Reversal of bad debts AR ] 1,359 =
Profit before taxation BRF% B S A 614,242 639,903
Segment assets PHEE 21,183,295 19,042,951
Deferred tax assets IRIEFA IR E B 6,107 6,107
Loan receivable e E K 406,827 414,820
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 4,895 4,572
Unallocated corporate assets RO RAREE 50,138 49,761
Total assets HmEE 21,651,262 19,518,211
Segment liabilities AR 4,949,961 3,538,670
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBABEE 1,874,286 1,836,187
Total liabilities B F 6,824,247 5,374,857
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Operating segments (continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenues, adjusted EBITDA,
assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, loan receivables, available-
for-sale investments and assets used jointly by
reportable segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than the liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable.

Geographical segment information

The Group’s financial services are located in Hong Kong and
the other operations are mainly located in Macau of The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of corresponding years contributing
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as follows:

TRER @

¥ ¥E@®

P - BABRTHE - FrBH - e
FEHEpRANEEEREB2HER (&)
ARERSERBEIEERESDE

e MBREEHREEE BKRENR - "AfH#th
EREREBDBARERZEEID -
BEEEENEZ2HOE -

s KBRERDBERAREZAEIN B
&2 =

AEBZ RRBUNEEL - MEAMEZR
TEURPEARAME(HE])RPIRFR
TR °

IREFEHR
MEFEAXRATEP 2 Wamh AR BB
HBiB10% WERLT

1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E——F —T—%F
mMA—RAZ —HA—H=
—_E2—= —E—_F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Sociedade De Jogos De Macau, S.A. RPN B R A 7
(note) (K1:E) 523,899 613,771

Note: Revenue from income from casino

Wiat - KB5S 2 Wz
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7 REVENUE 7 W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which are also the T AEBAEE W (IMAREB L)
Group’s turnover, is as follows: 2O
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E——fF —T——F
mA—BZE —H—H=ZE
—E—= —E——fF
=AR=+—H =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Financial services business S RRISER
— securities brokerage, underwriting — BHEL - REREE
and placements 150,578 179,858
— margin and IPO financing —RESRBRARABERE 453,410 489,762
— other financial services — Hib & m AR 12,980 20,427
Hotels and gaming business BE RIBF R
— room rental — EHEE 175,268 203,199
— food and beverage — Rm M aE 58,078 59,709
— gaming revenue — @R = 523,899 613,771
— other rental income — HEpES KA 3,775 7,245
1,377,988 1,573,971
8 OTHER INCOME Htglg A
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
=F—=F —F——F
A—RZE —H—H=ZE
—E—= —E—_4F
=A=+t—H =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Handling Charge FEB 7,573 12,324
Dividend income =N 2,712 3,893
Other loan interest income H th & 3F S A - 13,526
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B EE 5 & E M ER RSB ERE
and other receivables 1,359 -
Management fee income EEEIA 1,050 -
Sundry income AT A 3,033 5,970
15,727 35,713
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10

STAFF COSTS 9 EBIMA&
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
=F-—=F Sea— i
A—HBZ& —H—H=E
—ZE—= —E——4F
=A=+—-B =A=+-H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BIEESZHE)
remuneration)
— salaries, wages and other benefits — &M TEREMBEF 167,749 162,671
— contributions to defined contribution  — R FURRET 23k
retirement plan 983 1,094
— equity-settled share-based payment  — BB H B IRE 2 2k
expenses in relation to the grant AR D BER Y X
of share options 494 1,344
Total staff costs B TR A% 169,226 165,109
FINANCE COST 10 @AEKA
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 to 31.3.2012
=2-=F —F—F
A—BZE —H—HB=%
—E—-=fF —E——fF
ZA=+-B =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Interest on promissory notes A, =R T B 56,552 54,290
SHULHEBERAT —T =F4H 99
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11 TAXATION 11 $i\E
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E——F —E——fF
mMA—BZE —HA—H=®
—E-=F —E—_F
=A=+-B =A=+-E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET

Current tax: BNEAR I

Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH 77,404 85,860
Deferred tax EFERIE (3,195) (2,348)
74,209 83,512

100

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year
ended 31 March 2013 at a rate of 16.5% (fifteen months
ended 31 March 2012: 16.5%).

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax has been
made as the subsidiaries operating in Macau have
accumulated tax losses to set off against the
assessable profit for the year (fifteen months ended 31
March 2012: nil).
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11 TAXAT'ON (continued)

(c) The taxation for the year/period can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

11 FE @

(c) F/HABEAEGEBRRARK

AE M SRR

1.4.2012 1.1.2011

to 31.3.2013 to 31.3.2012

=F—=F —F——F

A—HZE —HA—H=E

—E—= —E——F

=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTExT TAT

Profit before taxation B Fd A R 614,242 639,903

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate BT R 16.5% 518 2 Fi 1B
of 16.5% 101,350 105,584
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries #EEth Al AR &S 2 B A A

operating in other jurisdictions METARZZE (11,555) (13,778)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NP FASE 2 & 97,254 107,016
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERETRIMAZ Fifs s & (119,361) (113,260)
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERBEEFHIBEE 7,513 769
Others Hith (992) (2,819)
Taxation for the year/period F/HAFIE 74,209 83,512

fifat - NI E IR B BICE 2 B RETIRMIP
E7316.5% » MBI E M ADEIEE IS
BB ERB12% °

Note: The tax rates adopted here are 16.5% for those entities
operating in Hong Kong and 12% for entities operating
in other jurisdictions.

12 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 12 BRBANER
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging the BREADEMBE R IFIEE
following:
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 to 31.3.2012
—E-C-F —E——F
A—B=Z —H—H=
—E—= —E——F
=AR=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 1A B <&
— audit services — ZHARES 1,973 1,984
— tax services — B AR 70 4
— other services — H AR - 780
Operating lease charges KERLEE 34,897 32,390

SHESRMEBMERAT —T =FFR 101



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS RaR B R

13 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 13 RQFHEE AEGET

THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a profit of HK$215,367,000 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: HK$150,084,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

14 DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended
30 September 2012 (six months ended 30 June 2011: HKO0.5

cents).

The directors of the Company recommended the payment of
final dividend of HK1.0 cent per share for the year ended 31
March 2013 (fifteen months ended 31 March 2012: HK1.0

cent per share).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year were amounted to HK$173,645,000 (fifteen
months ended 31 March 2012: nil).

14 BRE
IEE/)E@I—7

1E7SEA - 0.5781) -

ARBESREZNEEC

=t O/%ﬂll) °

ZENT ARG S

=t —BLEFEIRM KRS
(BT —F=A=1+—HIL+REA:

RARHEB ABIERE BT BIER A AR
IR R N BRI A #215,367,00078 T (H 2
- —_FZA=+—BLE+HMEA:
150,084,000 7T) Z iz £l ©

“FAA=THILEAAE
AZPHBRR(BE-_T——FA=1H

E—=%=AH

iHX1 O/%MJ

ST A b — 1 B B B S 0 A AN 4 FE A KR (S
BMEZEE AR
173,645,000 T(HEZE T ——_F = A
=t+—HI+HMEA : &) -

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 SREF
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E——fF —E——F
WA—BZE —H—H=E
=F-= bt
=A=+—-H =HA=+—H
HK cent HK cent
AL R
Basic earnings per share FREKREF 3.10 3.69
Diluted earnings per share BREERAT 3.10 3.65
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(a) Basic earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary

15 BRER @)
(a) BREXZR
STEEREARAEFEK

R &8F &% E

shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per REhnREE S EHT ¢
share are as follows:
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 to 31.3.2012
—E-—F —F——%F
mA—B=ZE —H—B=%
—Z—= —E——4F
=ZA=+—-HB =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Profit for the purpose of basic SAEERERBFZER
earnings per share 537,884 548,988
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 to 31.3.2012
—FB-—=F —F——F
A—RA=Z —H—B=%
—=E—= —E—=
=A=+—H =HA=+—H
Weighted average number of T AR NAE T 19 £

ordinary shares
Weighted average number of

12,101,794,803
I R] B el AT AR B ST AR

10,666,736,006

non-redeemable convertible I BB
preference shares 5,250,000,000 4,223,076,923
Weighted average number of shares STESREREF 2 KD
for the purposes of basic earnings Nt
per share 17,351,794,803 14,889,812,929
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

The earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share are the same as those for the basic earnings

per share, as outlined above.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of diluted earnings per share reconciles
to the weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as

follows:

15 BRERN @)
(b) %Hﬁﬁ;‘é%ﬂ
ATEEREERATA AT HE FY
ﬁﬁLqu S G EL A B FIFTER AR A AER o

BEREERMNRA 2T BBINE
?i’J%{,\u EEREABMRA 2L

AR ANFEF I BB IR -

1.4.2012 1.1.2011
t031.3.2013  t031.3.2012
—F-—-F —F—F
mA—-BE —A—H=
=F-= —FT—=F
=A=+—A =A=+—H

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation
of basic earnings per share
Shares deemed to be issued for
no consideration in respect of:
— Share options

AAEBREARBNRERAZ
EB N2

17,351,794,803 14,889,812,929

WRIEAZHER T3
BB BITZBD

— B

167,406,224

17,351,794,803 15,057,219,153

16 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

1.4.2012 to 31.3.2013

16 Htb2EWA (ER)

1.1.2011 t0 31.3.2012

“E-“¥MA-HZ —T——%—f—RA%
“B-Zf=ZR=t1-H “E-CF=H=1—H
Before tax Tax  Aftertax Before tax Tax  After tax
Bl BE Bi#& Al HE 14
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET THT TET THT
Surplus on revaluation of METHRET  Ef AR
leasehold land and buildings 345,715 (41,486) 304,229 413,738  (122,727) 291,011
Available-for-sale investments { Hj’iixﬁ
Unrealised gain/(loss) arising f """"" BHELL
from change in fair value RERMR/ (BE) 323 - 323 (1,388) = (1,388)
Other comprehensive income HEh2EIEA 346,038 (41,486) 304,552 412350  (122,727) 289,623
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17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

17 EEM <€
BE-—T =#=A=+-ALSEREE

An analysis of remuneration paid and payable to directors of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2012 and is set as follows:

—E-—_F=ZHA=t—HLETHAAR Bft
RENARBEEZMESMMT

Salaries,
allowances
and Discretionary Share-  Retirement 1.4.2012
Directors’ benefits bonus based scheme t031.3.2013
fee in kind payment payments contribution Total
—E-—F
A—HZE
—B-=f
g 2R A MR 5 BifGt8 =R=t-A
EZpe REVAG % EfzXf 3 it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET THERT THET THER TET
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chu Nicholas Yuk-yui RRBEE - 6,529 5,000 - 14 11,543
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah FRELT - 17,570 8,000 - 14 25,584
Independent non-executive BUFBHTES
directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen EHEEL 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Lau Man Tak Bk 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan SACEE 100 - - - - 100
300 24,099 13,000 - 28 37,427
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17 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 17 EEM 2w
Salaries,
allowances
and Discretionary Share-  Retirement ~ 1.1.2011to
Directors’ benefits bonus based scheme 31.3.2012
fee in kind payment payments  contribution Total
—2——F
~f-AZ
—E-—F
e 2H EiETEA AR A RifEE =A=+-H
ESME  REVAR % ERzxf 3 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chu, Nicholas Yuk-yui * VN it 150 5,850 - - 15 6,015
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah ZRELL - 17,750 - - 18 17,768
Mr. Wong Hin Shek ** FEEEAE - 512 - - 3 515

Independent non-executive BUFBTES

directors
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen BEEERT 85 - - - - 85
Mr. Lau Man Tak SIEesE 85 - - - - 85
Mr. Yu Peter Pak Yan LAkt 85 - = - - 85
405 24112 - - 36 24,553
* Re-designated from non-executive director from 1 April 2011 * RZZE——F A —HAHFRTEERT
**  Resigned on 1 April 2011 * REFE——FNH—HEHT
The discretionary bonus payment was determined by BIBIEAS RN EEE 2 BARRERE
reference to the individual performance of the directors and WA= B g
approved by the Remuneration Committee.
No directors have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments MEEECHEXREREHE_S—=F
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 and the fifteen A=+ HIEFEREE-ZZT—Z=-F=H
months ended 31 March 2012. =+—HIETREARZEAME -
There were no emoluments paid or payable as an BE_FT—=F=HA=1T—HLEFEREZE
inducement to directors to join the Group and no emoluments R -_HF-A=+—HIETRHEA  HE
were paid or payable to the directors as compensation for SNSENESHE  (EABRSMERSE
loss of office during the year ended 31 March 2013 and the 2 SREN S AE A BB (E o

fifteen months ended 31 March 2012.
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18

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2012:
2) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 17.
The emoluments in respect of the remaining 3 (2012: 3)

18 REH AL

hEEaEHFALTR WA (ZE——F: K
B)AES  FEZHEERME17HE -
H#p=%2(T——F: =R)RaH ALt

highest paid individuals are as follows: e T
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—E-—F —F——%F
mE—-AE —B—RAE
—ZE—= —E——4F
=A=+-B Z=ZA=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Salaries and other emoluments e hEAMBE 11,507 21,656
Retirement scheme contributions BRI 43 36
11,550 21,692
The emolument of the above individual was within the FiATZEN FLATEE :
following band:
1.4.2012 1.1.2011
to 31.3.2013 t0 31.3.2012
—EB-=F —F——F
mA—AE —A—AE
—E—= —E——fF
ZA=+t—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /& 70 £ 2,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7T 2 3,500,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7T & 7,000,000 78 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T = 4,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T 2 4,500,000 78 7T 1 -

HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000

12,500,001 /& 7T % 13,000,000 7 7T

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest

paid individual as an inducement to join the Group or as —_F—
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31 ) _f it
March 2013 and the fifteen months ended 31 March 2012. ZhnEE

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

BE_T—=F=A=+—HIEFEREZE
—F=ZA=+—RHITRER  #HE
ALTNRENME - (ERH
N B i
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19 Y% BERRHE

Leasehold Leasehold
land and improvement,
buildings furniture,
held for fixture and Motor
The Group REE own use equipment vehicles Yacht Total
BEEAZ HEWE
HELH £E- &R
RETF RERZE "B i3 i a5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TER TET TERT TER
Cost or valuation BRABERGE
As 1 January 2011 R-—Z——%—F—H 2,077,480 288,076 5,525 25,618 2,396,699
Additions NES - 36,677 682 99 37,458
Acquisition of subsidiaries Chg =N - 1,137 - - 1,137
Adjustment on revaluation EHAR 351,701 = = = 351,701
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=1+—H 2,429,181 325,890 6,207 25,717 2,786,995
Representing: &
Cost RIKAME - 325,890 6,207 25,717 357,814
At 2012 valuation R-ZE—_F{iE 2,429,181 - - - 2,429,181
2,429,181 325,890 6,207 25,717 2,786,995
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FNA—H 2,429,181 325,890 6,207 25,717 2,786,995
Additions NE - 67,024 1,281 - 68,305
Disposal de - (1,230) (867) ©6) (2,103)
Written off k| - (48,150) - - (48,150)
Adjustment on revaluation HEAR 292,089 - - - 292,089
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=FE=A=+—H 2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
Representing: R
Cost RKAE - 343,534 6,621 25,711 375,866
At 2013 valuation B_T—=FhE 2,721,270 - - - 2,721,270
2,721,270 343,534 6,621 25,711 3,097,136
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE
At 1 January 2011 R—Z——%—H—H - 179,522 4,853 5,977 190,352
Charge for the year FRHE 66,559 48,115 478 3,213 118,365
Adjustment on revaluation ESLECE (66,559) = = - (66,559)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=F=+—H - 227,637 5,331 9,190 242,158
At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FIA—H - 227,637 5,331 9,190 242,158
Charge for the year ERNE 64,357 41,524 642 2,580 109,103
Eliminated on disposals TS B B - (397) (867) (1) (1,265)
Eliminated on written off T 5 B A B - (36,294) - - (36,294)
Adjustment on revaluation ERAE (64,357) - - - (64,357)
At 31 March 2013 RZZ—=F=A=+—H - 232,470 5,106 11,769 249,345
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2013 R-ZB—=F=A=+—H 2,721,270 111,064 1,515 13,942 2,847,791
At 31 March 2012 R-ZZE——F=A=1+—H 2,429,181 98,253 876 16,527 2,544,837
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(a)

(b)

The leasehold land and buildings held for own use are
situated in Macau under medium term leases.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings for own use
were revalued by AA Property Services Limited, an
independent professional valuer, on an open market
value basis as at 31 March 2013. The valuation was
arrived by adopting the income approach for hotel
properties and by direct comparison approach for other
properties by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the market.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total amount of
revaluation surplus was HK$356,446,000. After tax
surplus of HK$304,229,000 has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group and the
balance of HK$10,732,000 was recognised in profit or
loss. For the year ended 31 March 2012, total amount
of revaluation surplus was HK$418,260,000. After tax
surplus of HK$291,011,000 had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
property revaluation reserve of the Group and the rest
of HK$4,521,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

19 Y% BERRKRE®

(a)

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

NRRMZFIFERRAE L RET
TRIR EOFA

AEEFEERCHEL M EETE
BB EXAEMRTYEERBR
REARZF—=F=ZA=t—HERQ
FMMEEESM - BEMETRAK
NEMBE EMWEINAERLEE
R2EMG L RURRERMKE -

HE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HItFE -
B (L A 4A%E 5 356,446,0008 7T © Br
i 1% F£42304,229,000/8 L E R EH b 2
EBAER  WEAKE 2 YESEH
25t $2%8 10,732,000 7t B 7
BEaBER HE_ZFT——-_F=A7
—t+t—HILEFE EHBHBBES
418,260,000/ T K& T & & &
291,011,000 7L E R E b 2 U A T
R WEASBZMEEHERBEERR
MERTK 4,521,000 78 T BIN B 2R FERR
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(d) Had these properties held for own use been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$1,425,926,000 (2012:

HK$1,464,726,000).

19 Y% - BERRZRE®

(d) BERZFFIEARMDEZERAERR

SFrITES R AIBREAMBEEAR
1,425,926,0008 t( — & — = F:

1,464,726,000787T) °

Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
fixtures and Motor
The Company AT equipment vehicles Total
HEWE
#1E - FKE -
RERZE AE a&t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FTEx TET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 2,511 1,041 3,552
Additions NE 60 - 60
At 31 March 2012 and AZE——F=RA=+—H
1 April 2012 E—ZE——FmMA—H 2,571 1,041 3,612
Additions NE 3,851 - 3,851
At 31 March 2013 R-T—=F=A=1+-H 6,422 1,041 7,463
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
At 1 January 2011 n—Z——%—H—H 2,422 1,041 3,463
Charge for the period HRFE 45 _ 45
At 31 March 2012 and RN—_ZE——F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 MZE——F/AB—H 2,467 1,041 3,508
Charge for the year FRITE 448 - 448
At 31 March 2013 NZZE—=F=A=1+—H 2,915 1,041 3,956
Net book value R FE
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=H=1—H 3,507 - 3,507
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=H=1+—H 104 - 104
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20 GOODWILL 20 BE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
S== —E——F
ZA=t—-B =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of goodwill B REE 10,996,683 10,996,683

The carrying amount of goodwill relates to the cash-
generating units (“CGU”) engaged in securities dealings,
underwriting and placements, margin and IPO financing
services and corporate finance advisory services are
HK$3,628,905,000, HK$7,148,237,000 and HK$219,541,000
respectively. The Group engaged an independent
professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, to perform
impairment assessment on goodwill. For the purposes of the
goodwill impairment test, its recoverable amount was
determined based on a value in use calculation, covering a
detailed 4-year budget plan plus an extrapolated cash flow
projections applying a steady growth rate subsequent to this
4-year plan, with a discount rate of approximately 8.52%.

As at 31 March 2013, the recoverable amount for the CGU
engaged in securities dealings, underwriting and
placements, margin and IPO financing services and
corporate finance advisory services are HK$3,698,000,000,
HK$8,245,000,000 and HK$223,000,000 respectively.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

(i) the annual growth rates of revenue were estimated
ranging from 7% to 20%, 7% to 8% and 7% to 30% for
securities services, margin and IPO financing and
corporate finance advisory services respectively
throughout the four year budget plan. Cash flow
beyond the four-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 3% (31 March 2012: 2%).

(i)  that gross margins will be maintained at their current
levels throughout the 4-year (31 March 2012: 5-year)
budget plan.

The Group management’s key assumptions have been
determined based on past performance and its expectations
for the market’'s development. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
businesses.

PRBELERD  BHEEEE  RES kS
RN BB E R E AR TS LA R 10 % B 75 A 8 AR
BrReEXEBM((REELSEM]) BH
ZEERMmESD B A 3,628,905,000 % 7T
7,148,237,000 7% JT & 219,541,000/ T °
AEBEZREBY BEGHEMESHEREFT
EBERARMEEEITHENG - hEE
BWERRME F ErfkESBIRFERE
BrtE - MEFRA4FHEES - SR
b4 FHFEIRHAREEREEH RS
METER - BR3R R4 58.52% °

RZB—=F=A=1+—8 #EZBALEX
5 BHEERE  RESLEXARESHE
BERBARCETBEBRS ZRSELS
iz 2 A el &85 71 /53,698,000,00078 7T
8,245,000,000 7% 7T & 223,000,000 T °

BETEMAEIERRAOT

(i) MAFHBEFEAR  BEFRSE - RE
ERERARABERERCEMBE
AR %5 < et FIE R R AF 2RI F
7% 2 20% > 7% £ 8% 7% & 30% °
AFRZBASRERAMERK3I% H
B(ZE——HF=A=+—H :2%)°

(i EFNRER4FH(—ET——F=A
=+—H:5F)BEAERN—EHHEF
HAEKFE -

AEBEEEEZ TERRIDBERBERBRER

BEHMSRRMETE - AR KA
WA RBRBBES 2 FHERR
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20 GOODWILL (continued) 20 ﬁ%(%)
Apart from the considerations described in determining the M EXFMEFReEELAENMFERERZE
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is BERZEI  NEEEIE BRI AN AEBE
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would HEfherEH T E Gt 2 HWEES) -
necessitate changes in its key estimates.
No impairment loss is provided for the year ended 31 March BE_T—=F-A=1+—HIFE ' W&
2013 (15 months ended 31 March 2012: Nil). The Directors TEE2EHREGEREGE (B2 ——%
performed an impairment test for the goodwill and concluded ZA=+—RHILETHER: &) -EREH
that the CGUs demonstrate sufficient cash flow projections TEERENS  SHERARSELEN
that justify the carrying value of the goodwill. Management ARNERREeREEAmMERSIER I EE
did not consider impairment of goodwill necessary. EREE EEERASBAELEERE -
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21 RB AR ZRE
The Company
KA
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—B—=£F —E—_F
=A=+-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE ETAReD - HRAANE 11,585,466 11,585,466
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B A R FRIE 3,418,946 3,377,040
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERH B R R RUA (727,767) (784,219)
14,276,645 14,178,287
Amount receivable within one year —F R FEUER K (406,836) (414,824)
13,869,809 13,763,463

112

Amount receivable within one year is loan to a subsidiary of
HK$406,836,000 (2012: HK$414,824,000) which are not
interest bearing (2012: 13% per annum) and repayable within
one year.

Apart from the above, the amounts due from/to subsidiaries

were unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed term of
repayment. The amounts were non-current in nature.

Kingston Financial Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

21 RBRARIZERE @)
TREZVNEEFEAREEEE EEE
BZHBRRFE - S EIREEIN - AT
AR 15 48 B BB 2 38 A o

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLH
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company SEMEY EER 2/ CRTR & ADF  KBAFT  activities
ARER Pk BRREFE BiRER B8 BE TEER
Bebright Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
PABRAF EERTHE e REER
Futuremind Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited RBRUES 1% REER
GR Casa Real Holdings British Virgin Islands  US$5 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EBELEE 5%TT REER
GR Casa Real (HK) Hong Kong HK$2 100% - 100%  Operating booking
Company Limited B 28T office for Casa
ERSREE (BHE) Real Hotel
ARAA RERSREE
e
GR Casa Real Company ~ Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Casa
Limited B 100,000£F 7T Real Hotel
EXEBBEFRDA KEEBREBBIE
Glory State Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
B 1B REER
Golden Resorts Group Macau MOP100,000 100% - 100%  Operating Grandview
Hotel Investment Limited &9 100,00032F 7T Hotel
EEEEBERE KEEBRBE
BRAR
Goventure Finance British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RBRAHE IE in hotels
WNBELERES
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RHBRRIZERE @

114

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERGLA
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company BMRL BER  HER/EROR A5 AQF  MBAF  activities
NREMH T BRBRAFE ERER 58 B8 TEEH
Next Champion Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
RBRUES 1% REER
Golden 28 Club* Macau HK$10,000,000 80% - 80%  Operating casino
ELBEEE" AP 10,000,000 in hotels
RBIER L85
Target All Investments British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RERUES 1% in hotels
EhREBRAR" WBIE S 285
Good Start Group British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Operating casino
Limited " RERTES (e in hotels
NBEESEHES
Brilliant Red Limited * British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
BABRAR® ABRAEE IE REFER
Crystal Sea Group Limited" British Virgin Islands  US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
EBRIHS E and operating
Golden Times Club®
in hotel
REERREE
BEEERA
EEE
Noble Brand Limited* British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 100% 100% - Trading of listed
EBRIHE E securities
BE LmES
Right Business Limited* British Virgin Islands  US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
BERRAR KBRS 100%7T REER
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21 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21 RBRRIZRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEREELS
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ registered/issued Group’s Held
registration and and paid up effective by the Held by a
operation share capital interest Company subsidiary Principal
Name of company MR BEk 2/ ERIR A5EE ADF  HBAF  activities
AR BT R 2 BRRAFE ERER ¥ BE FEER
Kingston Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000,000 100% = 100%  Dealing and advising
EMEEFERAF B 2,000,000,0008 7 in securities
BHRX 5 KR
AR5
Kingston Futures Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 100% - 100%  Dealing in futures
SNEHMEBRAA Bt 15,000,00078 ¢ contracts
HEEHRS
Kingston Corporate Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of corporate
Finance Limited B 11,000,000 7T finance advisory
2HNEHBERERAR services
R R RER
PR
Kingston Asset Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% = 100%  Provision of asset
Management Limited BB 5,000,000 7T management
ENEEEEEERAR services
RUBEEERK
# Company operates principally in Hong Kong instead of in their & FEEBTEMIELELZEMATL H
respective places of incorporation/establishment. M EEZ N A]
" Company operates principally in Macau instead of in their " FEERFIMILEGZEMATL KT
respective places of incorporation/establishment. M EEZ N A]
* Registered in Macau as an individual enterprise in the name of * FRBPIAFERE L+ 2 EZHEBLDRBEAR
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah =7
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 22 RAREFIER 2 ER
ENTITIES
The Group KEE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=fF —T——F
=R=+-A =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Investment cost BB 1,716 1,950
Share of result of jointly-controlled entities  FE{ tk E 14| F a2 245 (435) (235)
Share of net assets (R EEFE 1,281 1,715
Amount due from jointly controlled entities & U+t [ 4% 1| & f2 2008 - 103
1,281 1,818
Details of the jointly controlled entities are as follows: HEEHIEE 2 FBAT
Percentage

of ownership
interests/voting

rights/profit share
Form of Place of BERERER
business structure incorporation  Principal activity  RZ# 2 {EEF
Name &7 EREBER 11 A% L 1t 2 TEER Rl

Kingston/SBI Credence Limited Limited liability company ~ Cayman Islands  Investment holding ~ 50%

BREELT HERS REER
KINGSBI Investment Management Limited liability company ~ Hong Kong Investment advisory  50%
Limited BREERA EB REER
Kingston/SBI Credence Fund, L.P. Limited partnership Cayman Islands  Offshore fund 50%
BRAB LT HERS BINEE
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 22 NHAFEHER Z2ERE @
ENT'T'ES (continued)
The Group (continued) AEE @
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —E—_F
=ZA=t—-B =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Total assets EEMAE 2,669 6,658
Total liabilities BfE8E 107 3,227
Net assets BEFE 2,562 3,431
The Group'’s share of net assets of AEBEWEERIEH EREEFE
jointly controlled entities 1,281 1,716
Revenue W zs - -
Other income HAtw g A 2 -
Administrative expenses THAX (872) (470)
Loss before income tax BT RLATE R (870) (470)
Income tax FriSHi - -
Loss after income tax BRETS TR EE (870) (470)
The Group’s share of loss of REE G LR E e EE
jointly controlled entities (435) (235)
The Company P NN
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—EB—=£ —E——F
ZA=+-B =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Amount due from jointly controlled entities & Ui+t [F]42%2 1| & 82 3018 - 104
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23 INVENTORIES 23 FE
The Group
KEE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=fF —ET——fF
=A=+-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Food and beverage and operating supplies & M EE k& & Y& 2,942 3,366
24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24 TEHHERE
The Group
AEE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=fF —ET——fF
=A=+-—AH =H=1~H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Investment funds, at fair value KEES BERTE 4,895 4,572
The available-for-sale investments are denominated in United AR ERENETTEFHE - ZREWELFH
States dollars and there is no public market for the M5 o
investments.
The fair value is based on net asset value of the investment AR EZREERSRRERR 2 BEFER
funds at the end of the reporting period. During the year H-B8=—T-=F-A=+—HUFE"
ended 31 March 2013, a surplus arising on change in fair N FES B E AR E£4323,0008 7T (B =
value of approximately HK$323,000 (fifteen months ended 31 —E——F=ZA=+—HIE+REA : EAl
March 2012: deficit of HK$1,388,000) was recognised in 1,388,000/ 7T) * EREMEER AR -
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the WG E EmREERE -
investment revaluation reserve.
25 TRADING SECURITIES 25 RHHH
The Group
KEE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=fF —E—_—fF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB EM2BRAFS - 'mE
at market value 50,121 51,365
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25

26

TRADING SECURITIES (continued)

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

RIBH @
BATEHARNZ 2 MEEATESHE
REEEBRRIER ©

PR E K

The Group
rEE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —E—_F
=A=t+-—H =RA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loan receivable FEUE X 406,827 414,820

Loan receivable represents advances to Affluent Public
Limited, an independent third party (the “Borrower”). On 20
September 2010, the Group and the Borrower entered into
the loan agreement to which the Group agreed to make
available to the Borrower the term loan facility up to a
principal amount of CAD50 million. The loan is secured by
legal charge on the entire shares in the Borrower and entire
interests of the Borrower in a company incorporated under
the laws of the Province of British Columbia, Canada
(“Company A”), and personal guarantees executed by all
directors of the Borrower. The loan bears an effective interest
of 13% per annum and shall be repayable in 6 months from
the date of advance.

In connection with the Loan, the Group was granted the
option, exercisable within six months from the date of
drawdown, to either (i) subscribe for shares in the Borrower
representing 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Borrower (on a fully diluted basis) at the time of such
subscription, or (ii) to purchase from the Borrower, shares of
Company A, representing approximately 18.89% of the total
issued share capital of Company A (on a fully diluted basis)
at the time of such purchase, at the option purchase price of
CAD80 million. Once (i) the Borrower has subscribed for
approximately 75.56% interest in the Company A which in
turn will acquire 90% interest in a company incorporated in
Canada; and (ii) the option is exercised, the Group will have
an indirect attributable interest of approximately 17% in 34
subsurface mineral permits for exploration of potash in
Saskatchewan, Canada. The option has expired on 20 March
2011.

JEWETIEMBYE =T ERAER A ([1E
TADREZER - RZT—TFHA -+
H - ANEESEGRATLER B - Bt
AEEREMBRAREBEACERS E
50,000,000 T2 EHAERRE - ZEHKH
ERAZTR D RERAR —BERENEXR
RBFMm A EEFMNZ 2 AR ([AF]
Al T2 E R 2 EERRT - URERA
EREEEV CEABREER - BRIEE
BRAERERASEFE  WARBRHE -
NEAREE -

AREBERENEFEREAE  ATERIZBR
ANMEARA TS XNITE - LAIREEEEE
80,000,000 107 (i) REEE R AR - HER
RIBEBRADSIEBITRA 2 25% (B2
HEESEEREE) s (AERABERRAR
7 HEREEBARAZSBEEITRAL
18.89% (Z 2 M EE®E) - RE()EHA
EREA A AR A 75.56% A B) A% 5
U iE — R N R FEM AN SZ 2 A 712 90% 4
o N()ERREETE  AEEABREEM
RIS K IE TR HUR A 2 3417 Hb T g B4 5F
BEMIRFRAI BN 17% 2 HEERER - A
DR E——F=A_ftHEm"
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LOAN RECE'VABLE (continued)

Since the Borrower failed to subscribe for the shares of
Company A, in December 2010, the Group commenced legal
proceedings in Canada against the Borrower and its relevant
parties with a view to recovering the funds advanced. The
Group intends to enter into a settlement agreement with the
Borrower.

On 1 June 2013, the Group and the Defendant Group
entered into a Settlement Agreement. Pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, the Defendants group shall transfer
15 subsurface mineral permits to Canada United Potash Ltd.,
a company incorporated under the laws of the Province of
Saskatchewan (“SubCo”) and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Defendant Group. The fair value of the mineral permits was
estimated by the Group to be in the range of CAD53 million
to CAD85 million. The Defendants shall transfer the SubCo
Shares to the Group or its designated party. The Group
agrees to the Defendants to file the Consent Dismissal Order
and other documents with the Court subject to Release
Conditions. Accordingly, the loan shall be cancelled.

The Group shall grant the right to the Defendant Group to
purchase all the SubCo Shares or all the shares of the a
subsidiary of the Group which will hold the 15 subsurface
mineral permits at an exercise price of CAD82 million net of
any Liability during a period which shall commence
immediately after the SubCo Shares Transfer and expire 180
days from the Closing Date, being 7 June 2013.

26 EWER®

HRERALBEBRBRRAZED R-F
—ZE+_F  AKEENEREERAR
HEBATRAZZHFDESTCBRNZE
& o AREEEREKAGTMLE N o

R-ZE—=FA—H AEFEEFEED
R AR ek o IRIBANR e - RS EZA M)
Canada United Potash Ltd. ([SubCo] * &
BEMRERE EEFMKZ AT - B
HEEz2EMBAR)) EEASMHM TRER
A o AEBEFEETIBEZAFENT
53,000,000 17T ZE 85,000,000 AN JT ° % & &
AR AN B Sk B 5 F A 858 SubCo %17 °
AEBE R EERRIEERR T REBT IR A
ERES REMMF - Fltt - EFGEHEUH

RNEBER TR EEREF - AT 2 SubCo
RpEEERIRER ST B 180 B
(BI==F—=F"AtH) LHER - LA17E
{€82,000,000 0T (FBREM A E) BEFT
B SubCo &t sk AL B —KM B2 Al (K%
a5ty NEEF A F) ZATE kD o

27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27 BEZREMEWERR

The Group The Company
rEH PN
31.3.2013 31.83.2012 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5F —E——F —E-=F —E——F
=H=+—-8B =A=+t—HB =HA=+—B =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHT TERT FHET
Trade receivables from financial R B & iR D48
services segments B MR 6,306,548 4,668,514 - =
Trade receivables from hotel and R EB/E REX D E 2
gaming segments 2 Z AR 63,724 53,653 - =
Other receivables, deposits and ~ HAEWEEZ » 54 K&
prepayments R 38,365 30,248 7,706 8,643
6,408,637 4,752,415 7,706 8,643
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)y 27
Trade receivables from financial services

ESREMEBEWERR @
RESRBKE S EZEZEWRERR

segments
The Group
EE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
=ZA=t—-R =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET AT
Accounts receivable arising from BHERGBEEBEEZ
the ordinary course of business of JE W GRIA
dealing in securities:
Cash clients RERP 18,544 19,045
Margin clients: RESEP :
Directors of the subsidiaries and HEBARIESER
their associates HEE AT 270,289 37,271
Other margin clients HEMRESER 6,032,185 4,623,623
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt W REREEAE (23,430) (23,430)
6,297,588 4,656,509
Brokers and dealers KRERR5E 26 18
Accounts receivable arising from EEHEAHNHTEREL Y
the ordinary course of business of FEWFRIA
dealing in futures contracts:
Clearing house HEEFT 7,539 10,747
Accounts receivable arising from REUTSEZBEEBEEZ
the ordinary course of business of JRUGFRIA
provision of:
Corporate finance advisory services b 5 B 75 A 1 AR 75 1,395 1,240
6,306,548 4,668,514

The settlement terms of accounts receivable attributable to
dealing in securities are two days after trade date, and those
of accounts receivable attributable to dealing in futures are
one day after the trade date. Except for disclosed as
allowance for doubtful debt above, all accounts receivable
from cash clients are not past due at the reporting dates for
which the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

&5 R PRI 2 BYIRERR 5 B HIEM
AAREN  mEERERAEKFIAERNAR
X5 BHE—BREN B EXRE 2R
BN MBERESEP ZEEFENHER
v Eal  E2EMAE aNEEERY
BEAEE - BBERGRIDREFET 28K
B - SHERIF AR R ERE -
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27

122

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables from financial services
segments (continued)

No aging analysis is disclosed for receivables from margin
clients as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging analysis is
not meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings and margin financing. Accounts receivable from
margin clients are repayable on demand and carry interest at
approximately Hong Kong Dollar Prime rate plus 3%. Margin
clients are required to pledge securities collateral to the
Group in order to obtain credit facilities for securities trading.
The amount of credit facilities granted to them is determined
by the discounted value of securities accepted by the Group.
At 31 March 2013, total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loan to margin clients was
approximately HK$24,582,215,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$18,550,902,000).

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers, dealers
and corporate finance clients are current.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are regularly monitored by management.

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30
days to its customers. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period:

27 ESREMERERR @

RE%@W%zﬁZ%%@WE%
(5)

BEEZRE ERNESFRIRRETLMENE
HIHEE - RER ST EER - R ERERE
WIRFB SR FIERNREK DT - BUKIRES
BERIBAREREE WA ERB LR
BEFMEMIET B - RESRFARASE
EEFESETR  UREASR S EREE
BE - BTREZFERECHRASEER
MzBHFERBEEE - R=ZE—=F=A
=+—H  FAREZBESREFMEETERH
BB IR E S AT E4) 5 24,582,215,000 7

TT(ZZE——%F=H=+—8H : 18,550,902,000
BIT) ©
FEWAEERT S48 REP R EEMERF

Z TRIE R BN \E’Eﬁ g

AEBREFPRERFRE - NEBE A
TR ECPEH M R (BB FEUREOE %I%Ef
IR ERE - BB F RS

ﬁéﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁZ%%@Wﬁ
TA
REBE—MBETEFIORZFHEER-
INTAEBEZRBRBESNRE AR ZERRD
i

The Group
rEH

31.3.2013 31.83.2012

—E-=fF 2 F

=ZA=t—-B =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FAT

0-30 days 0% 30H 48,797 45,758
31-60 days 31260H 14,042 7,003
61-90 days 61290H 590 1,707
Over 90 days 90 H I £ 23,679 23,054
87,108 77,522
Allowance for doubtful debt RERE A (23,384) (23,869)
63,724 53,653
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (coninuies) 27 B SR EHMEWERF @

Trade receivables from hotel and gaming
segments (continued)

The movements of impairment loss on trade receivables of
the hotel and gaming segment are as follows:

5_!5 BEERBESECE S EWER
)
BIERBEDE2E S RWRFRERSEZ
HEINT

The Group
rEH

31.3.2013 31.83.2012

—EB-=F —E—_F

=ZA=+-B =HA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET T

At beginning of the year/period i - k] 23,869 19,500

Impairment loss recognised BERERREEE 874 4,369

Impairment loss reversed EREIREBE (1,359) -

At end of the year/period RE R 23,384 23,869

The Group
EE

31.3.2013 31.8.2012

—E—=f —2——F

=ZA=t—-B =A=1—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

Neither past due nor impaired I % 380 B SR (B 48,797 45,467
Past due but not impaired: BRI A ERE ¢

Less than 1 month past due BHIDTA {3 A 14,042 6,712

1 to 3 months past due BE1 23 @A 885 1,474

14,927 8,186

63,724 53,653

The balances which are past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers who have a good track record with the
Group, or are active during the year/period.

The balances of other classes within trade and other
receivables of the Group and of the Company are neither
past due nor impaired. They comprise other receivables
which are currently aged, and receivables from related
companies and group companies which are active during
the year/period. Management considers that these related
parties have sufficient financial capacities to repay.

The balances of other classes within trade and other
receivables of the Group are neither past due nor impaired.
Management considers that the credit risk associated with
these receivables is minimal.

ERHEERECEHRESZEREEAR
IFEE RSN G  PRNERCEFEM -

RARERARRRZE 5 R E M REWERKA
Z BB R AR BB HSOR(E - ZFAER
BREAEMAAEKTIE  ARREF HA
BEREBEEZRERRREEKE QA
ZREWHIR - BEEERS ZEWESAR
SRR BE N 1EE SRR -

REBZE S REMBUIRRS - EER
ZREGREAYITERE EEERS &
FZRWRIA 2 B EERBRIRE o
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28

29

124

CASH AND BANK BALANCES — TRUST
ACCOUNTS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as cash and bank balances — trust accounts
under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the
corresponding accounts payable (note 30) to respective
clients on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The cash held on behalf
of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS —

28 BERRITHER — FERF

REBRRBARBRRBILETRRP » UF
ER—REBBETELZEPHE - KE
B FEFRED BREAMBRART
MEBEER T < BE RRITHERS — B
B YRR E AR R P RRIAZ 18 K
Ra ERECER - HRER 2 BRI
iE30)  c KEFPHAZHEXEF LHIEK
FIRT Ex LR (FPFR) R AR &
ME -

20 BERREFEEE — —RIE

GENERAL ACCOUNTS =
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NUN
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —T—=F —E-=F —T-F
=A=+—-H =A=+-HB =A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHBT FHERT FHET
Time deposits TEHTF K 28,863 44,190 - =
Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFERE 159,239 100,982 21,673 21,650
Cash and cash equivalents in RSB EMRRRZ
the consolidated statement of BekREEMEEEB
financial position 188,102 145172 21,673 21,650
Cash and cash equivalents in NEGEERERERLZ
the consolidated statement of RekRe&%EEER
cash flows 188,102 145,172 21,673 21,650

Short term deposits during the year are made for varying
period of between 1 day and 3 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at respective short term time deposits rates. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalent approximate to
their fair value.
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 EFRHEHMEMIRM
The Group The Company
AEE FRF
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 31.3.2013 31.8.2012

—E-=F% —T——F —E-=F —T-F
=A=+—H =HA=+—-H =HA=t+t—H Z=F=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTAT FTHER THAT
Trade payables from financial RESRRESLE
services segments Z S EMNERR 778,769 640,306 - =
Trade payables from hotel and ~ KEEE REXDEZ
gaming segments B S e IR 17,095 11,894 - -
Other payable and accruals H A T 3RIB K
EETEM 76,218 46,269 13,068 13,320
872,082 698,469 13,068 13,320
Trade payables from financial services RETEEESEZE S BHERX
segments
The Group
rEH
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
S —E—_F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Accounts payable arising from BHERHIATEBEEZ
ordinary course of business of eI FRIE
dealing in securities:
Cash clients ReERF 330,128 173,410
Margin clients REBEEREP 416,185 413,976
746,313 587,386
Dividend payable to clients EREFRS 2 4
Clearing house SEEET 15,783 36,729
Brokers and dealers RERRSHE 1 1
Accounts payable arising from BEEHEANARERELEY
ordinary course of business of PRI
dealing in futures contracts:
Clients =25 15,352 14,387
Accounts payable arising from ordinary REUTSEZBEEBEEZ
course of business of provision in: FEH A -
Corporate finance advisory services 1b 5 B T R R AR 7S 13 14
Assets management services BEEERG 1,305 1,785

778,769 640,306
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 30 EZREMEMEKRR@®

Trade payables from financial services
segments (continued)

The settlement terms of accounts payable attributable to
dealing in securities are two days after the trade date, and
those of accounts payable attributable to dealing in futures
are one day after trade date.

No aging analysis is disclosed for payables to margin clients
as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging analysis is not
meaningful in view of the business nature of securities
dealings and margin financing.

As at the 31 March 2013, included in accounts payable was
an amount of HK$731,306,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$584,197,000) payable to clients and other institutions in
respect of trust and segregated bank balances received and
held for clients and other institutions in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities.

Trade payables from hotel and gaming
segments

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

RESHEBR I B 2E 5 EMNRK
(%)

BHX DRGNS FAARZ S BEME RN
s MAKERREGRAFERZ S B
t&— B RE -

BHE > RikDMALEEE  RABRES
FARNRES TP RIRZRE DN

R-TE—=F=ZA=+—H0 ENZESRE
FE 1= P K EL b #4% 50 IH 731,306,000 78 7T
—ZT——HF=H=+—H :584,197,000/%
TL) S RRETSREEZDARBTIRES
N EA BRI R IFH 2 S RIBLIRITA
@% °

REBERBEIEZEZENE
N
AT A 5 B IR B 98 5 B K 2 MR B
7

The Group
AEH

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
ZA=+-B =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
0-30 days 0Z30H 12,251 11,797
31-60 days 31260 H 4,484 49
61-90 days 61290 H 208 29
Over 90 days 90 H M E 152 19
17,095 11,894
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31 AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

31 BARRRE

The Group REE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—= —E——fF
ZA=+—-B =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Active Dynamic Limited Active Dynamic Limited 471,111 734,411
Better Sino Limited EEBR AT 1,190,000 1,190,000
1,661,111 1,924,411
The Company DT
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
ZA=+-B =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Better Sino Limited EEBRAR 900,000 900,000

32

The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and
repayable on demand.

LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The loan is due to Kingston Finance Limited which has
common directors and shareholders with the Group. The loan
is unsecured, interest bearing at the rate of 1.5% per annum
and repayable on demand.

32

BREFARTEE - BERNAREREE -

RE-RBELTNER
BERDENSFYHBERARDNE 24
AEAEEEAREERRE - EHUERA
I REFE15E B RARERE
# -
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33 SUBORDINATED LOANS

33 REER

Draw date Expiry date Terms 31.3.2013 31.8.2012
—E—= —E——F
12EY A H# & A Ef %% =ZB=+—-HB =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Loan from Mr. Lee Wai Man 30 Jan 2004 N/A P+1% 250,000 250,000
REFENXNEEZER —EEPF TEA HEERE
—A=+H n1E
20 Feb 2004 N/A 1.5% 150,000 150,000
—FEEF NE A 158
—H=+H
Revolving loan from 24 May 2010 2 May 2014 1.5% 300,000 300,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah
REFAELZT 2 BRER —E-TF ZZ—YF 15E
RA=+MA RAZ-H
700,000 700,000
34 BANK LOANS 34 RITER
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—=£F —E——F
=ZA=t—-A =A=1+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Bank loans, secured and repayable IRITER  AEAREAR
within one year —FENEE 150,000 981,000

128

The bank loans of the Group were secured by marketable
securities of HK$6,563,506,000 (31 March 2012:
HK$5,902,275,000) pledged to the Group by margin clients.
The bank loans of the Group bear floating interest rates
ranging from 0.82% to 1% per annum (31 March 2012: 0.97%
to 1.19%).
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35 PROMISSORY NOTES

35 AR

On 1 April 2011, the Company issued promissory notes with
a principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 as part of the
consideration to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Kingston Capital Asia Limited. The promissory notes are
unsecured, interest bearing at 2% per annum and will mature
at the third anniversary from the date of issue.

RZE——FNA—HB ' NARETEAESHE
#%1,000,000,00078 7T 2 AL R - 1ERIK
f% Kingston Capital Asia Limited 2282 317
BAZREBEFEHS - ALERAEER -
REFE2E R - WK EITHHRESE
=BREERTE-

31.3.2013 31.8.2012

S== —E——fF

ZA=+-B =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

At initial recognition U HER 890,358 890,358
Imputed finance cost HEERERKA 110,842 54,290
Interest paid AL (40,000) (20,000)
961,200 924,648

The fair value assessment of the Promissory Notes (“PN”)
was carried out by AA Property Services Limited, an
independent professional valuer. The basis for determining
the fair value of PN at HK$890,358,000 at the date of
completion of the above-said acquisition is as follows:

The fair value of the PN is estimated by using discounted
cash flow method.

Interest Rate: For the financial ratios of the Company as at
the date of completion, the interest rates of Standard and
Poor’s “A” and “BB” rated seasoned corporate bonds quoted
from Bloomberg are adopted.

Risk Free Rate: The PN are denominated in HK Dollars. The
risk free rate is determined by making reference to the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes with similar maturity term quoted
from Bloomberg.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon rate of the
PN and other relevant terms and terms are considered.

Discount Rate Calculation: (i) Discount Rate = 5.191%-
6.154%; (ii) Spot Interest Rate = 0.237%-1.20%; (iii) Other
Spread (Average) = 4.054%; (iv) Country Risk = 0.9%.

EEER(ALEER]) 2 AFET G EE
VEEMEMREYERMBR AR -
& JE & #1 890,358,000 78 7T 2 7 i E B R 72
R EMBEEEE A 2 A ECEENT

FA TR AFEVERMRAS B
HhifEt

Rl SRR TR B2 ML ER
T ERME MR E Al R BB]
SR EE A AES R -

ERRANR  ALRBTIABITEHE © &R
RAZT2RELEMBAERUFHZERE
SMNEESIESFMERE

FR NG Bt AREBRZEEBERER
BERPA K E AR R o

W3R R & 5ok ()BE R £=5191%—
6.154% : (ii)BNERFZ= = 0.237%1.20% : (iii)
Hib B 2= (FH) = 4.054% : (iv) EFHEERER
=0.9% °
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36

37

130

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employee are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 up to 31 May 2012 and
HK$25,000 from 1 June 2012 onwards. Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau were
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Group was required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme was to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2004 whereby the directors of
the Company may, at their discretion, select participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group to
take up options at HK$1 per grant to subscribe for shares in
the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant
of the share option to the date of expiry of the option or in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
a period to be notified by board of directors to each grantee.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant,
(ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.
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rEl([RfEestEll) - wESsr 2l AERE M
SRRETE] - BBLEEATE - BT
TF e BEERERESBEZEESBHK
AS5%AEFEIEL R - EFABBEKA L
R —Z——F5 A =+—HF7i1 420,000
B mMBE_E——&F/NA— B LRAA
25,0008 7T ° [RIFTEI1EL < R BN RIS o
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37 URGOEBERIF2XRI @

(continued)

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2013 LT ABREZERE MR —=F=A
which have been granted under the Scheme are as follows: =T BRARTEZBRESFE
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
Balance at for the for the for the for the

Exercise 1April  yearended  yearended yearended  yearended  Balance at

Name or category of price 2012 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

participants Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) (adjusted) 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
BE E BZ BE
R=%8-Z% -B-Z§ ZB-Z§ CZB-Z§ CZ%-Zf

MA-A =ZA=t-B =ZA=t-H =ZA=t-H =ZA=t-H MH=%-=f

i &8 LEER LEER EEER L¥ER ZA=1-A

SEEMZAEN  READ it (£3%) (&322 & it T b3 2t

(note) (note)
(Hizt) (Hizt)

Director:
EEX
Mrs. Chu YuetWah — 2/2/2010 2/2/2010t0 1/2/2013 HK$0.822 3L 6,080,000 - - - (6,080,000) -
TRELT “Z-Z%£-f-F -E-F4-f-AZ
“Z-ZF-f-H
Consultants 3/6/2009 3/6/2009 to 2/6/2012 HKSO.312iT 71,287,772 - (71,236,000 - (1772) -
B “EENENAZRE CEEAERAZHE
—Z--£5AZR
11/8/2009 11/8/2009 to 10/8/2012 HK$0.43 57T 177,266,476 - - - (177,266 ,476) -
“ZENENAT-B —EENEN\At-HZE
“ET-—F)\AtH
2/2/2010 2/2/2010 10 1/2/2013 HK$0.822 3L 197,503,000 - - - (197,508,000 -
“E-FE-_A-H -—E-TF-_A-PZ
—Z-=£-f-H
Staff 2/2/2010 2/2/2010 10 1/2/2013 HK$0.822 3L 11,675,000 - - (1,000,000)  (10,675,000) -
E& “Z-Z%£-f-R -E-E4£-f-HZ
—Z-=£-f-H

463,762,048 ~(71236,000)  (1,000,000) (391,526,248) -
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37 URGEBERIF2XRIZw

132

(continued)

Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
for the 15 for the 15 for the 15 for the 15
Balance at months months months months
Exercise 1 January ended ended ended ended  Balance at
Name or category of price 2011 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) (adjusted) 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
SE E 8z R
W=%2--% -B-Zf ZB-Zf CZB-Zf ZE-Zf
-f-B =ZBA=t-B =A=t-B =A=t-H =B=t-H MNZB-Zf
e &% LtTREAR LTR@AR LTE@AR LtE@AM ZA=t-A
SEEMZAEN  READ T8 (£3%) (3% B frf i b3 i85
(note) (note)
(Hit) (Hit)
Director:
g2
Mrs. Chu YuetWah  2/2/2010 21220100 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/8 7T 6,080,000 - - - - 6,080,000
ZRELT “2-$5-A-R -Z-TF-P-RE
“2-=£_f-H
Consultants 3/6/2009 3/6/2009 to 2/6/2012 HK$0.312/87C 71,231,772 - - - - 1,287,772
B “TENEAAZRE ZEENERAZRZ
“2-Z£5AZH
11/8/2009 11/8/2009 to 10/8/2012 HKS0.43 %87 221,583,095 - - (44,316,619) - 177,266,476
“EENENAtT-B ZEENENRT-HZ
—T-Zf)\RtH
2/2/2010 2/2/20100 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/87 200,003,000 - - (2,500,000) - 197,503,000
“E-TF-_A-F —E-TE-_A-PZ
“2-=£_f-H
Staff 3/6/2009 3/6/2009 to 2/6/2012 HK$0.312/87T 1,125,000 - (875,000) - (250,000) -
€8 ZEINEAAZR ZEENEARAZRE
“2-Z£5AZH
2/2/2010 2/2/20100 1/2/2013 HK$0.822/ 7T 15,000,000 - (1575,000) - (1,750,000) 11,675,000
“Z-TF-F-R -F-TF_A-pz
—T-=f-f-H
515,028,867 - (2450,000) (46,816,619  (2,000,000) 463,762,248

Note: The exercise price and the number of options outstanding at 1

January 2011 have been adjusted in accordance with the

share consolidation.
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37 URGOEBERIF2XRI @

(continued)

Share options granted to directors

The estimated fair value of the options granted to directors
on 2 February 2010 was HK$0.1225 per option. The fair value
was calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price hnkEEE RS
Exercise price 1IEE
Expected volatility LY
Expected life TE HA4F HA

Risk-free rate

88 [ g M) =R

Expected dividend yield T8 HARG B &

No vesting conditions is set for directors. The fair value of
share options grant to directors is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity at the date of grant.

Share options granted to staff

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 3 June
2009 was HK$0.0437 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price IR HAE
Exercise price I E
Expected volatility TEERR iR
Expected life TEHASEHR

Risk-free rate

Y R

Expected dividend yield T8 HARR 5. X

The estimated fair value of the options granted to staff on 2
February 2010 was HK$0.1422 per option. The fair value was
calculated using the Trinomial pricing model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price INREFIS IR E
Exercise price 1T1E(E
Expected volatility TRER R 18
Expected life TE B4 HA

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

&R R FI=
RHIBE X

MESRHZBRE
N-ZT—TF - A= BAAE SR DERE
I A EAB DB 12258 - A
FEDNE=ZEACERENGE - BHETEE
N ZBABIRIT ¢

HK$0.414 87T
HK$0.411 & 7T
82.629%

1 year &
0.255%
2.414%

BEREERTHBET - BTEE MR
W2 ATEDHERARIRA - MRS N
B BERE (T 2 B TR R L A AR
$#90 -

METITRHZERE
R-ZBEAENA=ZAFREBRE (A5
N EAEHERE0.0437E T - AFETD
R=EATEBERTE - BETEER 2 &
ABIERAT :

HK$0.15378 7T
HK$0.156 78 7T
66.827%

1.5 years &
0.911%
4.334%

R-Z—TF - A - HRAE IR ERE
2 AFEASHERE 14225 - A
FEDEZEACEERENE - EBTEE
NZBABIRIT ¢

HK$0.414 /57T
HK$0.411 /57T
73.33% to0 82.63%
0.496 to 2.918 years ©F
0.210% to 0.976%
2.405% to 4.868%
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37 URGEBERIF2XRIZw

(continued)
Share options granted to staff (continued) mMEIRHZERE®
The share options granted on 3 June 2009 to staff are subject REZZEZNFEAA=ZHRTEL ZERER
to the following vesting schedule: XT3 5B ER R -
Maximum number
of share options
Vesting schedule exercisable
AI{TEEREZ
7 B HA PR BAEH
From 3 December 2009 to 2 June 2010 —ZEZhF+_A=HE=_Z—ZF,XA_H 20%
From 3 June 2010 to 2 December 2010 —ZE—ZEFXA=H&_ZT—-ZTF+_-A_H 35%
From 3 December 2010 to 2 June 2011 —ZE—=FF+ - HA=H&-"F——F,XA"H 50%
From 3 June 2011 to 2 December 2011 —ZE——FXA=H&2_FT——F+_-_HF_H 65%
From 3 December 2011 to 2 March 2012 —ZE——F+ -/ =H&# _FT—_—HF=H_H 80%
From 3 March 2012 to 2 June 2012 - —F=A=HE-ET——F,AH 100%
The share options granted on 2 February 2010 to staff are NR-E—FEFE-_H-_HAETE T ZERER
subject to the following vesting schedule: TR 5B HIME R R -
Maximum number
of share options
Vesting schedule exercisable
AI{TEERE
57 B HA PR BAEHE
From 2 August 2010 to 1 February 2011 —ZE—ZFFEN\A-_HBE-_ZE——F_H—H 15%
From 2 February 2011 to 1 August 2011 —ZE——F_-F = Eﬁ:ﬁffij\ﬂ =] 30%
From 2 August 2011 to 1 February 2012 —Z——F\H -_HEZ-_ZT——F - F—H 45%
From 2 February 2012 to 1 August 2012 —ZE——F - A _-_HA&%— D?\f_i/\ﬂ H 60%
From 2 August 2012 to 1 January 2018 —ZE——F )/ \A-HE_-_ZT—=F—H—H 80%
From 2 January 2013 to 1 February 2013 —E—=F—H_-_HZ = T*—E HA—H 100%
The fair value of share options granted to employees is RYTEIZHEREZ ATERARBEIK
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding AN iEmT ARG AERI N 2 EETE
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity over A B R B BRI AR FE IR AN ©

the relevant vesting periods.
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37 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Share options granted to consultants
The estimated fair value of the options granted to consultants
on 11 August 2009 was HK$6,150,000.

37

The estimated fair values of the options granted to Group A
and Group B consultants on 2 February 2010 were
HK$8,610,000 and HK$3,690,000 respectively. No vesting
conditions is set for Group A consultants while the share
options granted to Group B consultants are subject to the
following vesting schedule:

URGOBERZNZRS @)

ElEEEE a1
R-_ZEZNENA+—BREBARDER
¥ 2 fEEH A F{E 46,150,000 8 7T ©

R-ZE—ZEF A _HETRERARER
Z BB HE 2 (5T A FE 5 5 A8,610,000 7%
7T £ 3,690,000% 7T © I 4% 3t M7 40 B8 [ 5% &
FEBKG METoABRZEREAST
5| 558 HARR AR R

Maximum number
of share options

Vesting schedule exercisable

A{TEEREZ
5 R HBR BAEE
From 2 August 2010 to 1 February 2011 —ZE—ZFFN\A-_HE-_Z——F_H—H 15%
From 2 February 2011 to 1 August 2011 —ZE——F -/ _HEZ_FT——F A\H—H 30%
From 2 August 2011 to 1 February 2012 —Z——%/\H— Elifz —H#=HA—H 45%
From 2 February 2012to 1 August 2012 —F——#-_H-HE-_FT——-F/\A—H 60%
From 2 August 2012 to 1 January 2013 —ZE——F A \A-_HAEZ-_Z—=F—H—H 80%
From 2 January 2013 to 1 February 2013 —&—=%—H_-_HZ-_F—=F_"_H—H 100%
The fair value was calculated using the Market Approach, AHEDERATSEASE - WE2EWMS L

reference has been made to the prices at which other
services of similar nature are agreed as available in the
market. In the process of valuing the share options, the
uniqueness of services provided by the consultants has been
taken into account. The consultant fee are computed based
on the number of working hours and the consultant fees to be
charged in the provision of the consultancy service together
with out-of-pocket expenses.

The fair value of share options granted to consultants is
recognised in the profit or loss with corresponding increase
in share-based payment reserve within equity.

Because the Trinomial pricing model and Market Approach
require the input of highly substantive assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

BEEE 2 IR 2 BB - ERHEE
Pz @R - Bt MERMARERE 2B
it - BRI B IR IR B R RS < TIERF 2K
MEVBEREERLREMRTE -

BETBEBREZ XA FERBDTHER - M
RS AR DD BER S 2 IS HREE
hm e
AR =ZBAEBEARTZEAFLRER
C BRERENRE  REIBRIEBHAF
Tﬁfﬁ.ﬁr—J ERERERTE -
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37

38
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Share options granted to consultants (continued)

A share-based payment expenses amounting to HK$494,000
(15 months ended 31 March 2012: HK$2,384,000) has been
recognised by the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013 in relation to share options granted by the Company.
There is no outstanding exercisable options as at 31 March
2013 (31 March 2012: 463,762,248). There is no weighted
average remaining contractual life of the outstanding options
as at 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012: 0.56 years).

There is no weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise of the options during the year ended 31 March 2013
(15 months ended 31 March 2012: HK$0.975 per share).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the movements during the year/period are as follows:

37 UROABERINZ2RE @

38

Accelerated

OEEERE 2 BRE @
HE-_Z—=F=ZA=1+—HLEE &R
RIFER 2 R EER AN BER S
ZHAET A HE49400B T (HE_ZS—=F
—A=+—H8 1+ AEA : 2384000
T)e RTE—=F=A=+—0H #EMH
RITEERE(ZZE—=—F=A=+—8":
463,762,24817) - R—TE—=F=A=1+—
B WARTTEEREARE 2 IR EFIR S
HHR( T ——F=A=+—H : 0.56%F) °

BE-_Z—==-A=+—BHILFE ' AT
SRS HE B HANO E IR P B (HE =
——®=A=+—HIt+HM@A : EA0.975

BIT) °

IR TE
BN NRA B RER ZIEER
BEE/ (A BIREEPMT :

tax Other Unused
depreciation assets tax losses Total
puif7 3 AEA
BlEITE HitEE BIAEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THT THET
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—H—H - 5,572 5,575
Charge to other B E 2 EU AR
comprehensive income (122,727) - (122,727)
Credit to consolidated STAGZEBRR
income statement 2,348 - 2,348
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y BB A A - 532 532
At 31 March 2012 RZZE——F=H=+—H (120,379) 6,104 (114,272)
Charge to other B H 2 EKR AR
comprehensive income (41,486) - (41,486)
Credit to consolidated FFAGRA IR K
income statement 3,195 - 3,195
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H (158,670) 6,104 (152,563)
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38 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
At 31 March 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$331,876,000 (2012: HK$305,185,000)
available for offset against future profits. As at 31 March 2013
a deferred tax asset of HK$50,867,000 has been recognised
(2012: HK$50,867,000) of tax losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward for a period

38 EZEFIIE )

R-_E—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H ' KEBEA Ak
EHEARREN 2 RS A M EEBIB
%) /331,876,000 (= T — = F : 4
305,185,000/ L) R T —=4F=H
=+—H ' EpFIEEE®ER 50,867,000
TZBEEMRBEE(ZZ — = F:
50,867,000 7 7T ) ° B3 7 48 % T8 R K 2R % )
HOR - B EBLER T 2 BIE S B ERIELER

of: THEE o RHERMIAE B RN T 5 HAfE 4
BE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—= —E——fF

=AR=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

One year —F 45,007 35,796
More than one year but —FEBIRRE

not more than two years 29,321 22,155
More than two years but MEL EBIDR=F

not more than three years - 34,248

Indefinitely AR PR BA 206,681 162,119

281,009 254,318
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39 SHARE CAPITAL 39 BRA
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=f=A=+—H —T——-f=RA=+—H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE &8 R EE S5
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Ordinary shares of R EE0.02/8 T,
HK$0.02/HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTz iR
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2012/1 January 2011 RAZZT——fF
mA—A,/
—Z——%—H—H 24,750,000,000 495,000 30,000,000,000 300,000
Share consolidation BinE o - - (15,000,000,000) =
Creation 185 - - 9,750,000,000 195,000

At 31 March 2013/31 March 2012 =T —=4
=A=+—-R8/
—E——F=H
=t+—H 24,750,000,000 495,000  24,750,000,000 495,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRARRA :
At 1 April 2012/1 January 2011~ R-Z——4&
mA—R8/
—T——%—H—H 12,043,244,666 240,865 10,319,797,333 103,198

Share consolidation Brn& B - - (5,159,898,667) =
Issue of shares pursuant to EU s S BT
acquisition of financial business ~ f&fn - - 6,000,000,000 120,000
Share placement RERH - - 890,000,000 17,800
Issue of share pursuant to HITE BRI TIR G
exercise of options 71,236,000 1,425 2,450,000 49
Share repurchase EAR ) - - (9,104,000) (182)
At 31 March 2013/31 March 2012 A& —=4F
=A=+—-8/
—E-—_%=H
== 12,114,480,666 242,290 12,043,244,666 240,865
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39 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 39 A&

31.3.2013
—E-—=F=A=+—H
Number of

31.3.2012
—E——_F#=A=+—H

Number of

shares Amount shares Amount
BRHEHE ot KHeE ok
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&E T T
Non-redeemable convertible  ~A] §E @]
preference shares I g -5
Shares of HK$0.02 each FAE(E0.028 7T
2 B&1n
Authorised: FEERRA
At 1 April 2012/ RZZT—=F
1 January 2011 mA—B,/
—T——5F
—H—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 — —
Creation hie - - 5,250,000,000 105,000
At 31 March 2013/ RIZE—=%F
31 March 2012 =RA=+—R/
—ET—_F
=A=+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIT AR
At 1 April 2012/ RZZE—=F
1 January 2011 mAE—H,
—=——fF
—H—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 - -
Issue of shares pursuant to AU R & B IR TS 75
acquisition of financial mEFTIR D
business - - 5,250,000,000 105,000
At 31 March 2013/ RZZE—=%F
31 March 2012 =RA=+—R/
B fF
=A=+—H 5,250,000,000 105,000 5,250,000,000 105,000

Pursuant to special resolutions passed on 22 March 2011,
share consolidation and increase in authorised share capital
were approved. The issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company were
consolidated on the basis of every 2 shares being
consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.02 each. The share

consolidation became effective on 23 March 2011.

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

BRER - T——F=A-_+_PEBBZE
PRS- B0 A OF RIB DA TE A B 2EHE
JfE o ARRIRATZREE0C.01BITLEE
TRRBETEBRIZEMBEH A —BREKR
E{E0.02BTT 2 EELEITRMNEH - RN &
HER-_T—F=A-_+=HEHR-

—T-CFER 139
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Company’s authorised share capital was increased from
HK$300,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000 consolidated
shares of HK$0.02 each to HK$600,000,000 divided into
24,750,000,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.02 each and
5,250,000,000 non-redeemable convertible preference
shares of par value HK$0.02 each by the creation of an
additional 9,750,000,000 consolidated shares of HK$0.02
each and 5,250,000,000 non-redeemable convertible
preference shares of par value HK$0.02 each. The increase
in authorised share capital has been effective on 22 March
2011.

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares
The fair value assessment of the convertible preference
shares (“CPS”) was carried out by AA Property Services
Limited, an independent professional valuer. The basis for
determining the fair value of CPS at HK$2,395,106,000 at the
date of completion is as follows:

The fair value of the CPS is estimated by using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model.

Risk Free Rate: The CPS are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The risk free rate is determined by making reference
to the Exchange Fund Notes of comparable terms issued by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Terms and Conditions: The face value and coupon of the
CPS and other relevant terms and conditions are considered.

Conversion Options Calculation: (i) Stock Price = HK$1.05;
(ii) Exercise Price = HK$0.8; (iii) Risk Free Rate = 2.732%; (iv)
Expected Option Period = 10.005 Years; (v) Expected
Volatility = 87.825%; (vi) Option Type = Call; (vii) Expected
Dividend Yield = 0%.

Share options

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 71,236,000 new
shares of HK$0.02 each were issued pursuant to exercise of
share options at consideration of approximately
HK$22,227,000.
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% 3@ 1% 5% 9,750,000,000 f% & A% E E0.02/75
TT 2 A B D & 5,250,000,000 A% & A% T 18
0.0278 70,2 Al HE [B] AT AR B S0 % + KA A
& F M AN #300,000,0008 (5 A
15,000,000,000 & & f% A E 0.0278 7T 2 & Hf
B 2 ) 1 A1 2 600,000,000 T 5 A
24,750,000,000 IR &A% T {E 0.02 /8 7T 2 & Bf
1% 15 & 5,250,000,000 f% & % E 18 0.02 7% 7T
2 7R B O] A] #A AR B ST A% ) o 1EANE T AR AN
ERZTE——F=A=-t+-—HB4&W-

AHEETRERELR

AT E IR ([ATR R E LR ) 2 A BT
HIRBY EXEHEMREYEBERERA
RIHETT o B F A $02,395,106,00078 JT 2 7]
BREBERNRTERE B2 AFE 2 EEN
T

AMBREER s AFEIVERRBAR — &F
BHTHIRE E BRI F L AR o

ERRAN X - ARRE SR TY A TTRTE ©
ERBNXT2ERAEECHEERELY
BEAABELBERZINEESBESMETE -

R M Gkt BET RAT R B R 2 mER
SRS R DA K E AR B AGRSR B AR A -

ER R E A - ()IR(E=1.05/8TT ; (ii)
78 B=0.8% st (ii)E A& B F XR=
2.732% : (iv) TEEAEAREF H = 10.0054F : (v)
FEHAR I8 = 87.825% : (vi) HARESE I = 3288
(vii) FEERRR B & =0%

B e

HE-_Z—=%=A=1+—BItFE " B
1715 B8 % #E LA X (B 49 22,227,000/8 JT B 17
71,236,000 IR T AR EIE 0.02 48 JT 2 #AR (7
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39 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
companies will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of subordinated
loans, amount due to a related party, amounts due to
shareholders, bank loans, promissory notes and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
paid up capital/share capital and reserves. The directors of
the Group review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the director considers the cost and the risks
associated with each class of the capital.

Based on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Net debts include amounts due to shareholders,
loan from a related company, bank loans, subordinated loans
and promissory notes, less cash and bank balances —

39 A&
BEoEE
AEEEEHEES  BRKEBBLERFERE
R 2 Tl BRAEEE NS AR HE
L FRREEERFA A ZDR -

AEEZEXNEEBEREEN BN —%F
BB AL HIR - AR FR - IRITER
EAZRBRANRAIERRE ARGED(H
BEHBRA /BARFEEER) - AEHEF
EHRmAEAERE - ERABRS 2 — &
D EEREBERES ZHRA NI EE

% -

AEESREEEZHBER - BBIKTK
B BITHBO RBETHEFRXBOAREE
% M PEAEERBERGE

AEEERAEEAGBL R (AMERFEBKRA
NEVHEEARMGERAR) EREN - B
FREBEREMNERERER - B —HEAEQR
B3 RITER - REEFRLALERREIR
ERBTHES — —REFP - RMEHRZ

general accounts. The gearing ratio as at the end of the BEEAGBHLXRNMOT :
reporting period is as follows:
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E—= —E——F
=A=+—-H =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Net debts B HEE 5,574,030 4,400,904
Total equity attributable to owners EN/NCIEZ DNy Stk
of the Company 14,813,577 14,132,065
Gearing ratio EEBELR 0.38 0.31
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SHARE CAP'TAL (continued)

Capital Management (continued)

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the Regulated
Subsidiaries) are registered with Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC.
Under the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of statutory floor
requirement or 5% of their total adjusted liabilities, whichever
is higher. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
regular basis and the Group has complied with those
requirements during the year.
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40 RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

40 fE#E

AEERAFER E—FEZRHEEBENRE

therein for the current and prior year are presented in the HE DN IBHRRESOBE 2SS
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 50 of FREF|
the financial statements.
Share Share-based Capital
premium Contributed payment redemption  Retained
Company account surplus reserve reserve  earnings Total
DRB A
Ry E4ERME
LN RiVEER  A9EH ZikE e REEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TEL TEL THT
At 1 January 2011 WZE-——E—-H—H 2,393,376 69,332 36,835 284 140,124 2,639,951
Share repurchased BERH (6,680) = = 182 (182) (6,680)
Share placement fREfk{n 854,100 = = - - 854,100
Issue of share under share RIEBRES21%TR R
option scheme 2,043 - (524) - - 1,519
Issue of ordinary share for KERBARME T AR
acquisition of subsidiaries 6,180,000 - - - - 6,180,000
Issue of non-convertible redeemable I MTB A 71F3 172 Al EE
preference shares for acquisition of R ARk (EE Bk
subsidiaries 2,290,106 - - - - 2290,106
Share-based payment PARRID R 7 % A - - 2,384 - = 2,384
Forfeiture of share options SR RE = = (1936) = 1,936 =
Profit for the period Gyl - - - - 150,084 150,084
Payment of dividends TRRE - - - - (86,509)  (86,509)
At 31 March 2012 W-E——F#=f=1+—H 11,712,945 69,332 36,759 466 205,453 12,024,955
At 1 April 2012 W-ZE——#NA—H 11,712,945 69,332 36,759 466 205,453 12,024,955
Issue of share under share REEERIERT 237k
option scheme 27,035 - (6,233) - - 20,802
Share-based payment B AER 2 - - 494 - - 494
Forfeiture of share options R - - (31,020) - 31,020 -
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 215,367 215,367
Payment of dividends TRE - - - - (173645)  (173,645)
At 31 March 2013 W-E—=F=f=1+—H 11,739,980 69,332 - 466 278,195 12,087,973
SHULHEBERAT —T =F4H 143
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40 R ESE RVES (continued)

144

(a)

The share premium account represents the excess of
proceeds received over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued, less share issue expenses.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the underlying
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair
value of unexercised share options granted to directors,
employees and consultants of the Company recognised
in accordance with HKFRS 2. Details are set out in note
37.

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of
the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

The reserve available for distribution by the Company to the
shareholders as at 31 March 2013 is approximately
HK$347,527,000 (2012: HK$274,785,000).
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(a)

ZIN/N

P in i B BR I8 A A B 2 WELPT 15 SR8
SRATETRN EE 28 ARG
BITH) -

BABRBRIEA QR ETRN EER
PR ERANB AR EEREMRE Z
Z8 - BREBEARE-NN—FREA
(F&185]) - WAABREBERE)AA
AIREFIFRNIRNEENEERHE
B ()ARBEECAZREESER
HEREEE  BREITRARRMDE
EBRZEE AARFATKERKK
MEE - KERBBREL DK

A BER N 2 HEEEERTA
NAEE  EERERZHRITES
Btz X HE (REBEF BV HRE 2R
2R o BN KIEEST

BRI (Ol {4 )5 B 1 85 P s [ AL ) T
RIBARRIEBTRAZEEMmES

ARZE—=F=HA=+—HASKT

A% BR 2 R 40 /5 347,527,000 78 T (Z B ——
£ 1 274,785,000/ 7T) °
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES M WEKREA R

On 14 December 2010 and 7 January 2011, the Group had
entered into sale and purchase agreement and supplemental
sale and purchase agreement respectively with Active
Dynamic Limited, a company wholly owned by Mrs. Chu and
Better Sino Limited, a company wholly owned by mother of
Mrs. Chu (together the “Vendors”) for acquisition of entire
issued share capital of Kingston Capital Asia Limited at a
consideration of approximately HK$12,000,000,000. The
consideration is to be satisfied in the following manner:

(i) astothe cash consideration of HK$2,000,000,000;

(i) as to HK$1,000,000,000 by way of the Promissory
Notes;

(iii) as to HK$4,800,000,000 by way of allotment and issue
of the consideration shares at the issue price of
HK$0.80; and

(iv) as to HK$4,200,000,000 by way of issue of the non-
redeemable convertible preference shares with the
conversion price of HK$0.80 per conversion share.

The Group was principally engaged in the operation of
hotels, entertainment with gaming facilities in Macau. The
Board believes that the Company, through the Acquisition,
could capture the high growth of financial market in Hong
Kong so as to enhance its shareholders’ value.

Subsidiaries of Kingston Capital Asia Limited are principally
engaged in provision of securities and futures brokerage,
margin and IPO financing, securities underwriting and
placements, corporate finance advisory services and asset
management services. The acquisition was completed on 1
April 2011 and had been accounted for in compliance with
HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

RZBE—ZEF+_A+HBAR-ZE——F—
BtH AEEEFTLLTZEEFTZAT
Active Dynamic Limited X ZZ + B #H 2 &
BHEZARERBRAR(GBIESD S
MEEEHERGAREE HE - AKE
Kingston Capital Asia Limited 22 £ 217 /%
A R {E#) A 12,000,000,000 % 7T - RIEH
ATE AL -

(i)  2,000,000,000 L AIR &+

(i) 1,000,000,000# 7T A H 24 75 2 %
i

(i) 4,800,000,000 % 7T A 1% &% 0.80 7B T
ZETERBERETREROAAX
F: &

(iv) 4,200,000,0007% It JA 2 B AR B R AR (5
0.80/ 8L 2 BRBRAT T A EE AR
ARE e T KA -

AEBETRHERPILFLETEE MM HEY
R IRESGFT - EERMARE - ARAAE
BEEEER CEFEERT SR ER
B’ BRI ERREE -

Kingston Capital Asia Limited Z ff/@ A &)=E
ERMUEFESFRPELLD REGKERARA
BERE  [HrEEMRE  CEMBERN
REREEEERY WESEEENR_-ZF
——FMA—HEK @ WEEBFHBHIER
EERAE I (KB EBAH] AR -

BEC R EE R A EHRAA ST AR
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41 WEKME DS @)

146

The assets and liabilities of Kingston Capital Asia Limited 7 U BE 52 X & B FT B8 AKingston Capital
and its subsidiaries acquired at the date of completion of the Asia Limited R EB AR 2 EERAEBEN
acquisition are as follows: K
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment L EN e 1,137
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE E 532
Statutory deposit for financial business PR ETEIRS 2,792
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b EUR AR IR 6,440,811
Trading securities R FHEH 615
Bank balances and cash — trust accounts IRITAESBRRIRE — BEFERP 780,966
Bank balances and cash — general accounts RITHEB RIS — —REEP 38,392
Trade and other payables B 5 R H AT BRI (1,198,075)
Tax payables FES IR (68,310)
Amounts due to shareholders FETRR SR R IB (1,450,000)
Loan from a related company RE—KBERBZER (932,079)
Bank borrowings RITHEE (2,028,000)
Subordinated loans BEEX (1,000,000)
588,781
Goodwill (note 20) 2 (K7 20) 10,996,683
11,585,464
Total consideration satisfied by: BREBATH AR
Cash consideration BHeRE 2,000,000
Fair value of promissory notes EHEBRATE 890,358
Fair value of consideration shares RERHOATEE 6,300,000
Fair value of non-redeemable convertible AR E R AR B iR A F{E
preference shares 2,395,106
11,585,464
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE & 2 IR & HFEE -
Cash consideration BHE&RE 2,000,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BARITHEBRLIAS (38,392)
1,961,608
Acquisition-related costs (included in other operating ~ WEEBEARA GIAXREEHE
expenses in the Group’s statement of income for —E——F#=A=+—H1t
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2012 THEARZEZRPEMLEHRE) 11,154
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41 WEHE DS @)

The fair value of the 6,000,000,000 consideration shares EAESZNTFTERRE — 2o EIT
issued as part of the consideration paid for Vendors was 6,000,000,000 ig X B f& 17 2 A FE TR A
determined on the basis of the closing market price of the EBERIETPUEE B E 2 WTH (B BELERETE -

Group’s ordinary shares on the acquisition date.

The gross contractual amounts of the trade and other Friid 2 8 5 R E M ERERR 2 & 4485848
receivables acquired are equivalent to their acquiree’s EREIE TR E i RN B 2 BRE
carrying amounts and fair values at the date of acquisition as BRAFE-

disclosed above.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42 BB s EE
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €I EER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of the RFEHH  AEBERARRZSHES
Group and the Company’s financial assets and REENBEZERENT -

liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows:

The Group The Company
*%8 K27
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E-=F —E—F —B=f% “E——F
=A=t-B =A=t-B =A=t-B =A=1-H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET TR T
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments L ERE 4,895 4572 - =
At fair value through profitorloss  RAF{ER AB
— Held-for-trading investments —BFEERE 50,121 51,365 - =
Loans and receivables EF R ENGE
— Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ — JEWB A RZIE - - 3,418,946 3,377,040
— Loan receivables — ElER 406,827 414,820 - =
— Financial assets included —HIANB S REMENR
in trade and other receivables B EREE 6,389,329 4,735,907 - =
— Cash and cash equivalents — B4 EB4ZEER 919,408 729,369 21,673 21,650
7,715,564 5,880,096 3,440,619 3,398,690
7,770,580 5,936,033 3,440,619 3,398,690
Financial liabilities tHERE
Financial liabilities measured REHR A 2
at amortised cost ZERAaR
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — ERHBARZUE - - 727,767 784,219
— Financial liabilities included in —HIAB S REMER
trade and other payables ERemas 810,640 659,941 - -
— Amount due to Shareholders o ES 1,661,111 1,924 411 900,000 900,000
— Loan from a related company — RB—ZRBEAFER 2,289,821 16,017 - -
— Subordinated loans —REER 700,000 700,000 - -
— Bank loans — RITER 150,000 981,000 - =
— Promissory notes —AHEE 961,200 924,648 961,200 924,648
6,572,772 5,206,017 2,588,967 2,608,867
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk.

(M)

42 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEBREEEERBEEK

AEEZXBARZEABBRR : T
SRR (BREELRRE - FMREERRE
wmER) EERRNRBESER

Market risk (i) ™MEERK
Foreign exchange risk b 57 2 e
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk REEASZZERTNREEME
arising from various currency exposures, primarily ECZERRR TEHRRIT
with respect to Australian Dollars (“AUD”), (Rt s ARBE(TAERR]) -
Renminbi (“RMB”), United States Dollars (“USD”) Eao( =) EmeRxd i
and Canadian Dollars (“CAD”). Foreign exchange TTl) o R BRI B ARREER
risk arises from future commercial transactions SREEREEHAE -
and recognised assets and liabilities.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RREBH - AEEAIINEFHE
currency denominated financial assets and LeMEERBEZEARMBER
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows: T
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=F —E—F —E-=F —E-CF
=A=t+—-B =A=+—H =RA=+—-HB =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT THET FHETT
AUD BT 27 15,846 75 15,860
UsD ETT 99 21,740 17,769 39,918
RMB AR 3,670 793 7,175 18,233
CAD i - 406,827 414,820

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD
and the net effect of AUD is low. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
RMB and CAD.

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

NER 1B B B IR AR SN S IR
KA BEEESERENE
B WRERERZREFEKR
BEE 56 L o

AEBEFEMETH BT ERH
EEMERE - MRTZFY
Z8E - AEERBEIEARIA
RERMTRE 2 FE -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

150

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table indicates the approximately
change in the group’s profit and loss for the year
in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the group
has significant exposure at the reporting date.

42 BiERBEER @
(b) BIEREEEERBE @)

(i) TBER®
PE 5 JB % (48)
TRIESAFERER 255 &
EBEREXSEAEEES(AE
EASRE BBAZEXNERE) M
EEZBRHEE -

31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=5=A=1+-H —T-—f=H=1+—H
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange after tax exchange after tax
rates for the year rates for the year
FRB®RBEZ FRRDIE
[ BRI, B EA,/ ikl by
(FB2) (A2) (NF%) O 2
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
% THET % THAT
Renminbi AR +4% 140 +4% 689
-4% (140) -4% (689)
Canadian Dollars i1 +8% 27,176 +8% 27,710
-8% (27,176) -8% (27,710)

It is assumed that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. It is also assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 31
March 2012.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(M)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises
primarily from its borrowings, bank deposits and
loan receivables. Borrowings and bank deposits
at variable rates and loan receivables at fixed
rates expose the group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The
management monitors the Group’s exposure on
ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points (2012: 100
basis points) in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$51,913,000 (2012:
HK$30,066,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the company’s
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 31 March
2012.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from
equity investments held for trading purpose (note
25) and available-for-sale investment whose
returns are linked to a portfolio of securities listed
in Hong Kong and other major stock market in the
portfolio (note 24).

42 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEREEEERBE @)

)

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

TS (@)

=
REBZHNERBREIEZHERB
H o |ROTEFAREEERESE
3 BB R R ERIT I BUARE B
WERSAEEBS HIAZRER
EFRE R KA HENRER o

N2 BN £ IR A A R dm HR )
E¥E 2 FERER - BIEEFEE
RNEB AT ZER o

R-E—=F#=F=+—8 m
FlkeEee PR T 10052 (=
T— & 100E%)  MATAH
ST ITE - S AER 2
B 1% 5 F) R AR BB B R 3E hn, R
4 #751,913,0008 T (—ZF — =
£ : 30,066,000 7T) °

R E DT R R R B
MEHREA - WEREARAA
ARZBHE A Z S/ T EmY
MERER —T—_F=AH
=+—B 2z R BEREE
1T o

B8

REEAS 2 ERRREARE
BEERR 2 BARE (K E25)
RREHAPZAHKERE
(HEHERNEEREMEER
EMHELETZESFREAEH
) (FfFE24) -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

152

U

(b) BF¥%

42 BIEEMRERE @

B EEEHZERBE®

Market risk (continued) (i) TWERR@E
Price risk (continued) B8R B (1)
The Group’s listed investments are listed on the REEZ FARENEBEPT
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy EW e EABUEE R 5FEH 2R
or sell trading securities are based on daily EIRESHERERBHFKRE
monitoring of the performance of individual NEAEERSBESTEME
securities, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. e BERERIEREAETEDT
Management manages this exposure by REREEZKE  UWEEREH
maintaining a portfolio of investments with Bk - REBIRERESTYE
different risk profiles. The available-for-sale FrEREERARGETTHEE
investment has been chosen based on their good "E - WEHERRIAETEE
value and growth prospects and are monitored TEHEY -
regularly for performance against expectations.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRAPEME EME SR
every 12% (2012: 12%) change in the equity BB - BRI EREER
prices with all other variables held constant and RZEEEFE  REZE12%
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the —E—CF 12%) ZHRNE o
reporting period. For the available-for-sale BAHEERENS BEE
investment, the impact is deemed to be on the WR ARG RE B EEEK R
investment revaluation reserve and no account is 2. it fEE EH A R E R
given for factors such as impairment, which might e EBmRIEE -
have impact on the income statement.
Increase/
decrease in
net profit/ Increase/
Increase/ loss and decrease in
decrease in retained other equity
basis points earnings reserves
R BR
BER
BEZ R/ REEF  HRA&EE
T #m,/ wWd i,/ Wb
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
31.3.2013 —E-=%=A=+-AH
Trading securities R 55 12% 6,015 -
Available-for-sale investment — A[{ft S & 12% - 587
31.3.2012 —E——-f=A=t+—H
Trading securities RPEH 12% 6,163 =
Available-for-sale investment ~ AJ{t HHEHE 12% = 549
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(if)

Credit risk

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is
represented by the aggregate balance of cash at
bank, loan receivables and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group
uses an internal credit assessment process to
assess the potential borrower’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by borrower. Limits attributed
to borrowers are reviewed by the management
regularly. The Group obtains collateral from
borrower to minimize the credit risk in respect of
the loan receivables.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Trade receivables are due within
30 days from the date of billing for hotel and
gambling segment. Normally, except margin loan
receivables, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Group consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

42 BIEEBERE @
(b) BIEREEEERBE @)

(i)

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

FERR

AREEAZ 2 EERRIERITIR
T BRERAKRE S REME
WERRZ i itth - EEEDEN
FEREK FEZEEHREER

LA
oo
AR

o

EHEERTFIRALZA - K
SR —ERBEEFHEFT
HEBRBEBRAZEEERR
REBRERAREEERE -8
RANEERBHHEREEH
Bat o AEEZ S REE KR
&R AMEUE I an A B ERIE(E
e

HEZREMEEERTE @ N
SEEREECRE—MHBME . A
EETEER BHEEURE
TTEMEERER - BAREWEE
EAEIRRERIRAE 1T < VB IE 18
TR ZEDRIRRNERER
HIEERT 30 A AEIHY - — R = -
KK RESERI  AEBET
SEREPREHEM® -
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

154

(i)

(iif)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of 31 March 2013, there is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to the
receivables, as no one customer is responsible
for more than 10% of the Group’s trade
receivables. This was also the case as at 31
March 2012.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
loan receivable and trade and other receivables
are set out in notes 26 and 27, respectively.

Liquidity risk

A number of the Group’s activities are subject to
various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the Securities and Futures
Commission in accordance with the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “HKSFO”).
The Group closely monitors to the liquidity gap to
ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to
fund its business commitments and to comply
with the relevant Financial Resources Rules under
the HKSFO. As part of the measures to safeguard
liquidity, the Group always maintains a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the uses of the shareholders’ loan,
subordinated loan and banking facilities in order
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long terms.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42 FBiEEBRERE @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMEREKEEBZERBEK®
policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) REESERE(E)
The following table details the remaining TRAFNAREE MARAFESTE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting SRBERRERRZRGBELD
period of the Group and Company’'s non- fEmER  TIiRIE S ’j;ﬁﬁgfﬁiﬁi
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on TR BREERASNTNERAE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (KM AZE AR REH R
interest payments computed using contractual EHMERAE) 25 B
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current at EARRABAIHERNHRZEFER
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest HAEESF -
date the company can be required to pay:
The Group REH
31.3.2013 3132012
ZE-ZEZf=1-f ZE3-CESf=1-R
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted  one year or Over Carying  undiscounted ~ one year or QOver
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
SHRER -Ehg AR —Eng
REE ReRELE EEX - FEE ReRs4g i35 #B-%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000
TERL T TiEn Tin Tin T Tin Thn

Trade and other payables EFRAMERES 810,640 810,640 810,640 - 659,941 659,941 659,941 -
Amounts due to shareholders  EERRRZUR 1,661,111 1,661,111 1,661,111 - 1924 411 1924411 1,924 411 -
Loan froma related company ~ RE-FEBAASH 2,280,821 2,324,168 2,324,168 - 16,017 16,257 16,257 -
Subordinated loans A 700,000 721,750 721,750 - 700,000 721,750 721750 -
Bank loans RITER 150,000 151,335 151,335 - 981,000 990810 990810 =
Promissory notes AREE 961,200 980,424 980,424 - 924,648 961,634 18,493 943,141

6,572,772 6,649,428 6,649,428 - 5,206,017 5,274,803 4.331,662 943,141
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 43 BB ERER @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEEEEBZERBE®
policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) RBESERE
The Company b/ N/ |
31.3.2013 3132012
ZE-cE-f=t-f 3-2F=A=1-A
Total Total
contractual Within coniractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted  one year or Over Camyjing  undiscounted ~ one yearor Over
amount cashflow  ondemand one year amount cashflow  ondemand one year
AHRER -ERg, ARFER —ERg

FAE HReRE4ER EZ% Bf-F REE HeRELE EEX i
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$1000
Thn Thn Thn Tin ThR Thn Thn Tin

Trade and other payables BARAMERES -

including amounts BEERKE
due to subsidiaries DA 21,161 121,767 721,767 - 784,219 784219 784,219 -
Amounts due toshareholders S fkE R 900,000 900,000 900,000 - 900,000 900,000 900,000 -
Promissory notes ESED 961,200 980,424 980,424 - 924,648 961,634 18493 943,141
2,588,967 2,608,191 2,608,191 - 2,608,867 2,645,853 1,702,712 943,141
(c) Fair value estimation (c) AFEME

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities TRHMEEREREBZAFETIET

are determined as follows: H|FIHEE :

— the fair values of held-for-trading investments with —  WNEREGRRRAREIREER
standard terms and conditions and traded on FMZEECIHIEEEREZA
active liquid markets are determined with FEDZ2EMR MG EAEE
reference of quoted market bid prices; E

—  the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset — TFAHHESREEZ AFER
is based on net asset value of the investment fund BRBEPRZEERESEEF
at the end of the reporting period:; BEE

— the fair value of other financial assets and — HucomEERSRAEZAF
financial liabilities are determined in accordance BENEAREEBER  EAT
with generally accepted pricing models based on B REMER ZER X
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or ZHBRREREDTMABEEE
rates from observable current market transactions T °
as input.
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

(d)

Fair value estimation (continued)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values as at 31 March 2013 and
31 March 2012 except amounts due from (to)
subsidiaries which are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it
is not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value by level of the following
fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Level2 —

Level3 —

The following table presents the financial instruments
that are measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013
and 31 March 2012.

42
(c)

(d)

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

EERERw

AR EMFT @
EFERE R ZE—=F=RA=+—
BER—_ZT——F=A=+—H" ' &R
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42 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 42
(d) Fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)
At 31 March 2013

MR EE @
(d €RITEAFEHE @

R-E—=H=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— A EZRA FE=RA HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT FHER FTHER THERT
Assets BE
Held-for-trading securities BEEERS 50,121 - - 50,121
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments - 4,895 - 4,895
50,121 4,895 - 55,016
At 31 March 2012 R-—E——HF£=H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—5 FE45 E=H7 M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHETT
Assets BiE
Held-for-trading securities HIEEE XA 51,365 = - 51,365
Available-for-sale ARHERE
investments - 4572 - 4572
51,365 4,572 - 55,937

During the year, there are no significant transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2.
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 43
The Group leases its land and buildings under
operating lease arrangements, and the terms of the
leases range from one to ten years and the leases are
repayable in fixed monthly installments. The lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the respective
lease terms. There is no arrangement for contingent

(a)

rent payments.

REHERE

(a) AEERBEEHELHHAER Tt
kEgF HENF—FETFLF
HeZAEEI YN - HEWZA
REBEHEMNGES AEELE
ARATHES I ZHE

The lease payments recognised as an expenses are as WRAERSZ 2HEFHEWNT :
follows:
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—_=—= —E—_F
=AR=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments KA EIB 34,897 32,390

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating

leases which fall due as follows:

R-ZZE—=F=A=1t—0  &x&E
RAAREZEEHEERT 2 BREK
RIEHESEEN T HRE2E

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—= —ET——fF

=A=+—H =HA=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET T

Within one year —F R 2,537 2,595
After one year but within five years —FRRERAFK 751 1,985
3,288 4,580
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43 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued) 43 #&R&EHERIE @)

(b) The Group entered into non-cancelable operating lease (b) AEBEZEFE T AAIEEALSH
arrangements with landlords and the terms of the EZH HENFE—FERFEITE o

leases range from one to five years.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum RZE—=F=A=1+—H &XE&EH
lease rent payables under non-cancellable operating KA ELCEHERT 2 BEER
leases falling due as follows: =R BER Y EAREEIE -
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—=E—= —E——fF
ZA=+t—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Within one year —E R 32,341 33,597
After one year but within five years —FRBRFNA 28,141 60,010
60,482 93,607
44 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 44 AEERIAEE
LIABILITIES
The Group
rEH
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—E-=fF —T——F
=ZA=t—-R =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Capital commitments in respect of B RIEE - BREREEZ
acquisition of property, plant and B AR EYE
equipment:
— contracted but not provided for — BRI ERR T SRR ARE
in the financial statements 11,374 14,669
— authorised but not contracted for — BEREERETH 363 2,919
11,737 17,588
The Group and the Company had no material contingent R EBR - AEBRAR B ESE KA
liabilities at the end of the reporting period. BfE-
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45 UNDERWRITING AND SUB- 45 BHEKk 7 EHEHARE
UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS
The Group
rEH

Name of Clients 31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—E—=fF T4

EFER =A=+—H =H=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT T

Company B ~A]B - 22,946

Company C ~A]C - 12,877

Company D NCIED) - 38,799

Company E NGIIS 140,959 -

Company F ~aF 122,500 -

Company G ~alG 96,519 -

359,978 74,622

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values RRRESERA  BEERIBHETHEZATF

of the underwriting and sub-underwriting arrangements are
insignificant to the Group.

46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party and connected
transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 17 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 18 as follows:

46

EUAREEMSALIFERX -

EXAERTRBERS

PRt FH B RREM IO WE 2 X5 M &
S NREBEHETT MIIEAET RAER
5 o

(a) TEEBAEMHSE
TEEBAEME  BRERALARAE
EXNZ2FIB(RMF17HEE) kA
FTHEaHEE XM Z2HERHE18
WER) T

31.3.2013 31.3.2012

—=E—= —E——F

ZA=+t—H =A=+—H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Short-term employee benefits SRl =R 37,399 24,517
Post-employment benefits BB 1213 A 28 36
37,427 24,553

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (note 9).

SHNESRMEBHFRAE

M @BEIIA B TRAI(HEE9) °
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND

162

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions which are also connected transactions

46 ERFEEFTRBERS @

(b) &

s

=F=A=+—ALLFE
N AEEBETTIIEANBESTX

5 REBELTRAUNZER SN RHE

(“CT”)/continuing connected transactions (“CCT”") TH([ER S ])  BHERER S ([
under the Listing Rules. =fER S ) o
Transaction
type under 1.4.2012 to 1.1.2011 to
Name of related party Nature of transaction Listing Rules 31.3.2013 31.3.2012
—B-_fF —ET——%F
A—BZE —H—RA=%
BiE EHRA —E-Z=F —T—_F
BER AHB REME REEH =A=+-H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Chu and Li’'s Family Brokerage income CCT
KRRFRRIE RPN HRERER S 710 1,435
Maximum amount of CCT
IPO financing SEMER S
AR AREERER - 76,362
Maximum amount of CCT
margin financing RERER S
BRaiRESMER 179,654 77,068
Interest income CCT
FE A BEBEXS 1,274 1,314
Lau Man Tak and associates Brokerage income CCT
FxiEraE REBMBEAL  KLlA SBRRER S - =
Maximum amount of CCT
IPO financing SERER )
e BAARAREERER - =
Maximum amount of CCT
margin financing RERER S
ReaRETRER - 3,788
Interest income CECIl
FEWA HEEER S - 48
Directors of subsidiaries Brokerage income CCT
and associates HERILPN SEMRER S 138 186
B AREE R HEKE Maximum amount of CCT
AL IPO financing REBEZS
ERER A AREERETE 4,343 5,656
Maximum amount of CCT
margin financing RERER S
B = bRae @ A 5B 778 38,454
Interest income CeIl
FEHA FERERS 4 684
Kingston Finance Limited Interest expense CCT
(note 2) BRI SERER S 16,148 10,625
2 LB HRA A Management fee income ~ CT
(HaE2) (note 1) RRIER 5
EIRBWA (Mat 1) 600 =
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Management fee income  CT
Limited (note 2) (note 1) FER S
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) & 3 & W A (KfaE 1)
Limited (#f&E2) 450 -
Mr. Lee Wai Man (note 3) Consultancy fee (note 1) CT
PENEE (M 3) ERER (Fa1) BER 5 1,000 1,000
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah Staff quarter rental Gl
THELL expenses (note 1) BER 5
ETEEHEEM (Wi 1) 894 1,118
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY AND
CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (continued)
(b) (continued) (b)

46 ERFEEFTRBERZ @

For the continuing connected transactions above, the
independent non-executive directors have reviewed
and confirm that the continuing connected transactions
are in the ordinary and usual course of business, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in page 162 of the Annual Report in accordance
with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Notes:

1. This transaction was transacted at a price agreed
between the parties and in accordance with the
agreement.

2. Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah had controlling interest in the
company.

3 Mr. Lee Wai Man is the father of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah.

BIYFATEFTCRINLFERE
RP UTHAFEEERXHINAT
R—REBBET  RIEFBEERN
TREEEZSRKR P ZBBHELL
FAREGHET  AFAARARE
RN

ARAAERCREBELTRAUE14AE
ETHBERE ©

ARBZBMCEZEERB LSS
fiAgEMmeBEEEEBERRE
300035 [ FEZ R EHBEN B EFR
MEFTIE]  W2REBKHAESE 740
5% [BER &8 L R AP #5 E REE XX
S RBED T | AR E 2 15 ERE
RAZELRE - ZHEERBEERE
AR R 14A. 38 1R BL AN 5 BN F 5B
162E B HERER HEHER
BREAKM - BRI EER R o
ARRERBEHE X ZABARAA
2 X BED R B o

it -
1 WERSDEATHESHEZ BER
REBBIHETT -

2. FHELLTRZNAHEEREREZ -

3. FEBXEAERFAELLZRH -
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47 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 47 LLEBEEF
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform ETHEBEFEEEAR  UFAAREHEZ
with the current period’s presentation. 25| o
48 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER 48 HEHERFEAREH
REPORTING DATE
(@) On 1 June 2013, the Group entered into a settlement (@) RZT—=FA—H0 X~EHEHEH
agreement with the Defendant Group in relation to a HSE M —IBEWE FKET AR B o
loan receivable. Further details are disclosed in note HE— R BRI 26 A#EER o
26.
(b) After the end of the reporting period, the directors (b) MRImEHARRE  EFEZIRTRERK
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed B oo #E— BB 14 AR -
in note 14.

49 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 49 #EBBK®|E

The financial statements were approved and authorised for PR ERERZE—=F AT HBEE
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2013. TR R T o
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